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ABOUT Kantone
(STOCK CODE: 1059)

Kantone Holdings Limited (“Kantone” or the
“Company”) (www.kantone.com) together with

its subsidiaries (the “Group”) is a leading provider
of [T driven communications systems with a
presence in over 50 markets. It has a proven track
record of high reliability and high integrity products
and systems established by its key subsidiary

in Europe with over 75 years of extensive
experience. Kantone builds on its long-time client
relationship to expand its business into a multiple
range of private and public sector projects which
cover both [T-related and other investments
where it sees synergies and favourable return to
shareholders in the long term.

Kantone is also a market leader in the provision of
software and technology infrastructure for
one-stop electronic betting solutions complete
with a secure e-commerce platform for global
gaming and entertainment activities in China.

Kantone is listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and
is a subsidiary of Champion Technology
Holdings Limited, the holding company of a
communications software group.
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Financial Highlights

MHRE

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
—E--F ZZ-ZF ZZTTNEFE ZTTN\F —TTtH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHr FHL FHL FHT AT
Results #i5
(for the year ended 30 June) (BERAZTHLEE)
— Turnover — BEE 1,341,006 1,289,616 1299684 1,613,048 1,426,505
— Adjusted profit* — SRR (B 150,040 165,909 265,306 471,868 466,035
— Adjusted EBITDA* — RFAFE BB HE
R BN (5H%) 508,043 547,778 601,623 760,158 630,640
— EBITDA — REFAFIE - BE -
WEREHE 2 BT 532,323 461,978 404,624 425,254 574,859
— Attributable profit — R 84,025 82,955 71,068 143,010 412,018
— Dividends - RE 25,593 20,825 18,791 51,723 120,023
— Eamnings per share (in HK cents) ~ — &R & I (B {l1) 1.44 1.57 1.57 3.89 12.37
Financial Position (as at 30 June) Bt &R (RA<B=1+8)
— Cash and cash equivalents* - BekAReEFE 248,552 126,547 138,340 105,896 100,099
— Total assets - BERE 3,334,519 3057917 2995040  2,545463 2,405,056
— Equity — = 3,156,748 2872938 2,789,377 2,279,155 2,124,524
Financial Ratios (as at 30 June)  BtILtR(AXA=+H)
— Current assets/Current liabiliies ~ — ZEEE/RBHERE 6.52 6.72 7.34 4.56 3.14
— Assets/Equity — BB/ R 1.06 1.06 1.07 112 1.13
— Sales/Assets —BEE AR 0.40 0.42 0.43 0.63 0.59
— Gearing ratio — XL R 0.01 0.02 0.01 0.02 0.04
* Excluding impairment, fair value change of convertible bonds * Rt ARE - TRREHF QAT EEZSREMIERELER

and other non-cash items
* Excluding overdrafts

. TEIEEX

Earnings Profile (1996-2011)

B F##% (1996-2011)

(in HK$ million) (BE&BT)
Adjusted EBITDA
RELAFIE - BUH - T8 RMELEF (GHR) 260
B EBITDA ) .
REFARE - BIE - EREHEZ BT
Profit
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Chairman’s Statement

Dear Shareholders,

The year under review was marked by the most challenging
economic environment in decades, with the global
economy in turmoil. The Euro Zone lurches from one debt
crisis to another, while the world’s largest economy —
the United States — loses an AAA rating. Japan remains
plagued by economic woes and political instability,

and political unrest in the Middle East and North Africa
continues to dampen investment sentiment across the
globe. China, seen as a panacea to many of the world’s
economic ills, faces high inflation and a slowdown amid
faltering growth in the main developed economies.

Uncertainties in the business climate continued to
depress levels of public and private sector spending.
Such market conditions have slowed the pace of
growth of the Group. However, the Group’s investment
in innovative solutions continues to hold the key to
maintaining momentum during these difficult times.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
For the year ended 30 June 2011, the Group’s
financial performance is summarised as below:

e Turnover was HK$1,341 million, up 4%

e Profit for the year was HK$84 million, up 5%

e Adjusted EBITDA (excluding impairment)
was HK$598 million, up 9%

e Profit attributable to owners of the
Company was HK$84 million

e Earnings per share was HK1.44 cents

The Group’s fundamentals remain positive and it
adheres to a prudent financial management policy.

The Group’s business in both investments and
development of customised wireless systems and
communications software solutions has been affected
across the board by the global economic slowdown.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The board of directors (the “Board”) has recommended
the payment of a final dividend of HKO.2 cents per

share for the year ended 30 June 2011. Together with

the interim dividend of HKO.2 cents per share, the total
dividend per share for the year would be HKO.4 cents, and
total dividend for the year would be HK$25.6 million.

Kantone Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011

MAINTAINING FINANCIAL PRUDENCE
The Group maintains a positive financial position as
evidenced by its low gearing. As a precaution against
further financial turbulence, and to strengthen our liquidity
position ahead of continuing market uncertainties, the
Company raised net proceeds of approximately HK$208
million in April this year from a rights issue on the basis of
two rights shares for every five existing shares held. The
proceeds serve as additional working capital of the Group.

Consistent with its prudent financial management
policy, the Group has not entered into any speculative
derivatives or structured product transactions.

OUTLOOK

Global markets are likely to remain nervous and unsettled
over the continuing debt crises in Europe and the slowdown
in the United States. China, including Hong Kong, has
adopted tightening credit policies and fiscal measures in
efforts to combat inflation, giving rise to the prospect of
further cooling measures which may slowdown the overall
economy. The tragedy in Japan in March this year fuelled
further uncertainties about global recovery, while continuing
unrest in the Middle East and North Africa, and the ensuing
speculation over oil prices are also market concerns that
dampen investment sentiment across the globe. Under
such conditions the Group will continue its prudent
approach in forward planning and financial management.

APPRECIATION

I would like to extend my sincere gratitude to all members
of the Board and staff for their hard work and commitment.
We also thank our shareholders and other stakeholders for
their continuous support and confidence in our Group.

Paul KAN Man Lok

Chairman

30 September 2011



Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the year under review (the “Year”), the Group’s turnover
increased by 4 percent to HK$1,341 million from HK$1,290
million for the previous year (the “Previous Year”). Profit for
the Year was HK$84 million, a rise of 5 percent, and profit
attributable to owners of the Company was HK$84 million
as compared with HK$83 million for the Previous Year.
Earnings per share for the Year was HK1.44 cents (2010:
HK1.57 cents). The Group’s gross margin continued to be
under pressure, declining to 21 percent from 23.8 percent
for the Previous Year. The fall was exacerbated by increasing
amortisation arising from the Group’s continued investment in
the development of advanced technology products. EBITDA
increased by 15 percent to HK$532 million from HK$462
million for the Previous Year. Faced with the ongoing uncertain
economic environment and challenging market conditions,
the Group had taken prudent measures to recognise
impairment losses of HK$66 million (2010: HK$86 million)
for deposits and prepaid development costs for systems
and networks. Excluding the impairment losses, adjusted
EBITDA for the Year increased by 9 percent to HK$598
million, compared with HK$548 million for the Previous Year.

The Group continues to review and exercise cost control
measures. Distribution costs remained stable at HK$39
million, while general and administrative expenses decreased
by 8 percent to HK$88 million (2010: HK$95 million) and
research and development costs expensed decreased by 24
percent to HK$9.8 million (2010: HK$13 million). Total staff
costs included in cost of sales and general and administrative
expenses decreased by 5 percent to HK$98 million (2010:
HK$103 million). Depreciation and amortisation expenses
went up 17 percent to HK$448 million (2010: HK$381
million) as a result of a continuing roll-out of new projects.

Finance costs for the Year remained low at HK$0.6 million.
The Group’s financial position remains positive with net cash.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

In China, the Group continued to benefit from the Central
Government’s backing of the science and technology
sector. As a result of the Group’s increased marketing

and sales activities for customised solutions and

products, sales in China had grown. Further, the Group
responded to a number of new public and private sector
opportunities by expanding its product portfolio to embrace
a wide range of integrated wireless solutions and web-
based monitoring systems, mainly designed for remote
management and security applications. For the Year, China
sales amounted to HK$886 million, a 6 percent increase
compared with HK$832 million for the Previous Year.

In Europe, the global economic climate continued to affect
the Group’s trading position. Austerity measures implemented
by governments across Europe had slowed spending and
delayed project rollout. In particular, the Group’s business

in the United Kingdom (“UK”) declined as its government
embarked on the deepest spending cuts in a generation. The
Group maintained its focus on emergency services, NHS
(National Health Services) projects and fire control sectors,
where some projects were delayed, others suffered from
reduced budget, and some were even scrapped. However,
the Group was able to maintain momentum due to its
product specialisation and new offerings that met customers’
requirements. To alleviate the shortfall in the UK operation,
the Group put more effort on other European markets

where the Group’s innovative range of personal security
products, centralised messaging and building management
solutions for the emergency and health services had been
well received. Additionally, such products and solutions
enabled the Group to expand into new market sectors such
as the care homes for the elderly and dementia patients.
Turnover of the European operations was HK$354 million,
compared with HK$364 million for the Previous Year.

Kantone Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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Management Discussion and Analysis

For e-gaming and online entertainment, the Group continued
to provide integrated gaming technology solutions, online
payment channels and sales networks, with revenue

steadily increasing. In line with new legislation and

provisions governing the operation of lottery on Mainland
China, the Group adjusted its business model accordingly.
Investments in the e-lottery project were subject to periodic
review to determine if progress was in line with original
plans, and if the anticipated benefits could be achieved.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Financial Position and Gearing

The Group’s financial position remained positive with a low
gearing. As at 30 June 2011, the Group had HK$249 million
(2010: HK$127 million) liquid assets made up of deposits,
bank balances and cash. Current assets were approximately
HK$733 million (2010: HK$609 million) and current liabilities
amounted to approximately HK$112 million (2010: HK$91
million). With net current assets of HK$621 million (2010:
HK$518 million), the Group maintained a comfortable level of
liquidity. The gearing ratio of the Group, defined as the Group’s
total borrowings of HK$39 million (2010: HK$47 million) to
equity attributable to owners of the Company of HK$3,157
million (2010: HK$2,873 million), was 0.012 (2010: 0.016).

As at 30 June 2011, total borrowings mainly comprised
bank loans of HK$33.2 million (2010: HK$47.2 million) and
overdrafts of HK$5.5 million (2010: Nil). All the borrowings
are repayable either on demand or within one year (2010:
HK$18.2 million repayable within one year, HK$4.2 million
repayable in the second year and HK$24.8 million repayable
in the third year). As at 30 June 2011, bank loans of HK$26.7
million repayable on demand according to the terms of the
loan facilities were classified as current liabilities. Bank loans
of HK$31.2 million (2010: HK$33.2 milion) were secured

by the Group’s land and buildings with a carrying value of
HK$8.5 million (2010: HK$7.9 million). Finance costs for the
Year amounted to HK$0.6 million (2010: HK$0.5 million).

Kantone Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011

In April 2011, the Company issued 2,121,658,738 rights
shares of HK$0.1 each at a subscription price of HK$0.1 per
rights share on the basis of two rights share for every five
existing shares held. The Company raised HK$208 million
(net of expenses) for general working capital of the Group.

Treasury Policy

The Group is committed to financial prudence and
maintains a positive financial position with low gearing.
[t finances its operation and business development

by a combination of internally generated resources,
capital markets instruments and banking facilities.

All the borrowings were used by subsidiaries of the Company
bearing interest at floating rates and were denominated in
their local currencies. As such, the currency risk exposure
associated with the Group’s borrowings was insignificant.

The Group does not engage in any speculative
derivatives or structured product transactions, interest
rate or foreign exchange speculative activities. It is the
Group’s policy to manage foreign exchange risk through
matching foreign exchange income with expense, and
where exposure to foreign exchange is anticipated,
appropriate hedging instruments will be used.

Capital Commitments

As at 30 June 2011, the Group’s capital commitments
authorised but not contracted for was approximately
HK$98 million (2010: HK$76 million). The Group

has set aside sufficient internally generated funds

for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment,
and development of systems and networks.



HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 30 June 2011, the Group employed about 700

staff around the globe. Staff costs for the Year were

HK$98 million (2010: HK$103 million). Remuneration

is determined with reference to market terms and

the performance, qualifications and experience of the
individual employee. Remuneration includes monthly

salaries, performance-linked bonuses, retirement benefits
schemes, and other benefits such as medical scheme.

The Company has established a Human Resources and
Remuneration Committee. In determining the remuneration
of the directors, the committee will consider factors

such as the Company’s operating results, individual
performance, salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities, employment conditions
and desirability of performance-based remuneration.

FINAL DIVIDEND AND SCRIP DIVIDEND
SCHEME

Subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company, the Board has
proposed a final dividend of HK0.20 cents per share for the
year ended 30 June 2011 (2010: HKO.20 cents per share)
to shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 9 December 2011. Taking into
account the interim dividend of HK0.20 cents (2010: HK0.20
cents) per share paid on 11 May 2011, total dividend per
share for the year would be HK0.40 cents (2010: HKO0.40
cents); and total dividend for the year would be HK$25.6
million, compared with HK$20.8 million of last year.

The final dividend will be satisfied by allotment of new
shares of the Company, credited as fully paid, by way of
scrip dividend, with an alternative to the shareholders to
elect to receive such dividend (or part thereof) in cash in
lieu of such allotment (the “Scrip Dividend Scheme”).

The Scrip Dividend Scheme is subject to the granting
by the Listing Committee of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited of a listing of and permission to deal
in the shares to be issued pursuant thereto. A circular
setting out the details of the Scrip Dividend Scheme
together with the form of election will be sent to the
shareholders of the Company as soon as practicable.

It is expected that certificates for shares to be issued under the
Scrip Dividend Scheme and dividend warrants will be despatched
to those entitled thereto on or before 17 January 2012.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
The register of members of the Company will be closed
from 8 December 2011 to 9 December 2011, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be effected. In order to qualify for the above
final dividend and the Scrip Dividend Scheme, all transfers of
shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s Branch Share Registrars

in Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited at 26th Floor,
Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on 7 December 2011.

Kantone Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Paul KAN Man Lok, 64, is the founder and Chairman. He is
also the Chairman and an executive director of both Champion
Technology Holdings Limited (“Champion Technology”),
which is the holding company of the Company listed on

the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Exchange”), and DIGITALHONGKONG.COM
(“Digital HK”), which is a fellow subsidiary of the Company
listed on the GEM Board of the Exchange. Dr. Kan holds

a Master’s degree in Business Administration from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong and an Honorary Doctor
of Humane Letters Degree from the University of Northern
Virginia, United States. He has over 40 years of experience
in the computing and telecommunications industries. Prior
to setting up the Champion Technology group in 1987, he
was the general manager in charge of Asiadata Limited, a
computing services subsidiary of Cable & Wireless PLC.

Dr. Kan has received a number of prestigious awards from
several governments and various local and international
professional bodies in recognition of his contribution to the
community and the industry. Government awards include
Commander of the most Excellent Order of the British
Empire (CBE) by Her Majesty Queen Elizabeth Il (2006);
Commendatore dell'Ordine della Stella della Solidarieta
[taliana by the Italian Prime Minister Hon. Romano Prodi
(2006); the Hong Kong SAR Government’s appointment as a
Justice of the Peace (2006); Chevalier de I'Ordre de la Légion
d’Honneur by the Government of France (2007); and Silver
Bauhinia Star by the Hong Kong SAR Government (2009).

Professional awards include Young Industrialist Award
(1992); Hong Kong Business Award-Enterprise Trophy
(1998); Governor’s Award for Hong Kong Industries
(1989); Honorary Fellow of the Academy of Chinese
Studies (2005); and Honorary Professor of Szent
Istvan University in Budapest, Hungary (2011).

In civic duties, Dr. Kan is currently the Honorary Chairman of
the Hong Kong Information Technology Industry Council and
the Chairman of Hong Kong IT Alliance; and a member of
HKSAR Chief Executive Election Committee for the IT sector,
the Council of The Chinese University of Hong Kong, the
Chinese People’s Poalitical Consultative Conference of Anhui
Province in the PRC, and the Election Committee for the
Hong Kong representatives of National People’s Congress
of China. He served twice on the Exchange Corporate
Governance Working Group during 1994 — 1995 and

Kantone Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011

1999 - 2000, and was a member of the Listing
Committee of the Exchange for the period 1999 — 2003.
He was the Chairman of the Hong Kong Trade
Development Council Information and Communications
Technology Services Advisory Committee (2006 — 2010)
and ICT Working Group, Hong Kong — United Kingdom
Business Partnership (2004 — 2007).

Dr. Kan had been an independent non-executive director of

CLP Holdings Limited for 9 years from 2001 until he retired in
April 2010. In January 2011, Dr. Kan was appointed Honorary
Consul of the Republic of Hungary in Hong Kong and Macao.

LAl Yat Kwong, 63, is the Acting Chief Executive Officer

and Chief Financial Officer of the Company. He is also the
Chief Financial Officer and an executive director of Champion
Technology, as well as a non-executive director of Digital

HK. He joined the Champion Technology group in March
1994 as Vice President of Internal Audit and Control. In July
1997, he took on responsibility as the Chief Financial Officer
of the Company. He holds a Bachelor’s degree in Business
Administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong and
has over 39 years of experience in accounting, auditing and
company secretarial matters. He is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (Practising). With
effect from 1 October 2011, he will be an independent non-
executive director of Trony Solar Holdings Company Limited,
shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Exchange.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Leo KAN Kin Leung, 55, has been a non-executive director
of the Company since June 2001. He is also the Chief
Executive Officer and an executive director of Champion
Technology, as well as a non-executive director of Digital
HK. He is a brother of Paul Kan Man Lok, Chairman of the
Company. He is responsible for formulating the Champion
Technology group’s overall policy and development strategy
as well as its global operations and management. Prior

to joining the Champion Technology group in 1988, Mr.

Kan held management positions in several international
companies in Hong Kong. He holds a Master’s degree

in Business Administration from Dalhousie University

in Canada and a Master’s degree in Economics from

the University of Alberta in Canada. In 2006, Mr. Kan
completed the Oxford Advanced Management Programme
at the Said Business School of the University of Oxford.



Mr. Kan is the Chairman of the Hong Kong Information
Technology Industry Council. He is also the Vice Chairman
of Hong Kong IT Alliance as well as the Chairman of its IT
Committee. He serves on Internet Professional Association
as Honorary Secretary and a Council Member. Mr.

Kan is a member of the Technical Standards Advisory
Committee at the Office of the Telecommunications
Authority, the CreateSmart Initiative Vetting Committee of
the Hong Kong SAR Government, the School of Continuing
Education Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong Baptist
University, the Design Council of Hong Kong and the
Consultative and Advisory Panel of the Hong Kong Internet
Registration Corporation Limited. He is also an Executive
Committee Member of the Hong Kong Information
Technology Joint Council and a General Committee
Member of the Federation of Hong Kong Industries.

Shirley HA Suk Ling, 55, has been a non-executive
director of the Company since November 2004. She is

the Chief Executive Officer and an executive director of
Digital HK, as well as a non-executive director of Champion
Technology. She joined Champion Technology in 1992

as its Executive Vice President with responsibility for its
corporate development. She has over 25 years of business
experience including 10 years in investment banking.

Ms. Ha holds a Bachelor’s degree in Arts from the University of
Hong Kong and a Master’s degree in Business Administration
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. She currently is a
member of the Personal Data (Privacy) Advisory Committee
of the Office of the Privacy Commissioner for Personal Data,
Hong Kong, Digital 21 Strategy Advisory Committee, the
Assessment Panel for the DesignSmart Initiative and the
Board of Review (Inland Revenue Ordinance); and serves

as Mentor under the Mentorship Programme of the Hong
Kong Science and Technology Parks Corporation. She is a
General Committee Member of the Federation of Hong Kong
Industries and Vice Chairman of the Hong Kong Information
Technology Industry Council, Council Member of Internet
Professional Association and Co-Chairman of Special Interest
Group in Venture Capital and New Business Development,
Senior Member of the Hong Kong Information Technology
Joint Council and member of the Hong Kong Corporate
Counsel Association. She is also the Honorary Secretary

of Hungarian — Hong Kong Innovative Business Council.

Paul Michael James KIRBY, 64, has been a non-
executive director of the Company since November 2004.
He is a non-executive director of Multitone Electronics

Plc, a subsidiary of the Company. He has over 30 years of
experience in the telecommunications industry of which 17
years were with Cable & Wireless PLC (“C&W plc”). He was
formerly the Head of Corporate Affairs and a member of
the Executive Management Committee, with responsibility
for all aspects of investor relations and public affairs of
C&W plc. Since 1991, Mr. Kirby has been acting as an
independent Telecommunications Management Consultant
specialising in business development and flotation strategy.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Frank BLEACKLEY, 74, has been an independent non-
executive director of the Company since November 2001.
He is also an independent non-executive director of
Champion Technology. He was formerly Managing Director
of Chubb China Holdings Limited, a subsidiary of the former
Chubb Security Group, a manufacturer and distributor of
security and safety products and systems headquartered

in the United Kingdom. He has considerable experience

in the management and business development of joint
venture companies in Hong Kong and Mainland China.

Professor Julia TSUEI Jo, 84, has been an independent
non-executive director of the Company since October

2003. She has over 40 years of experience in medicine

and biomedical research, in particular, Traditional Chinese
Medicine. She had taught in the various medical schools

in USA, Taiwan and China and is well-acclaimed in the
Chinese community of biological medicine research. Her
research achievements in bridging east-west medicine also
earned her much recognition in the international arena, as
demonstrated by the numerous awards she received in the
past. These include the Lifetime Achievement Award granted
by the International Institute for Advanced Studies in Systems
Research and Cybernetics, Baden-Baden, Germany in 2001;
the Founding Patron and Lifetime Member conferred by the
American Association of Acupuncture and Oriental Medicine
in 1991; Chairman of Acupuncture Research Foundation of
the Acupuncture and Moxibustion Society of China during
1995-2005; as well as founder of the International Medical
Science Research Foundation in the US and Taiwan in 1988.

Kantone Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011



Directors and Senior Management Profile

Professor Tsuei is presently President of Foundation for East-
West Medicine, USA; Vice President of American Association
of the Acupuncture and Bioenergetic Medicine USA; Professor
Emeritus of School of Public Health, University of Hawaii,
USA; Director of Clinic for East-West Medicine, Taiwan;
Founding Director of Graduate Institute of Traditional Chinese
Medicine, National Yang-Ming University, Taiwan; and Board
member of Chinese Bio-Electromagnetic Science Association.

Miranda HO Mo Han, 41, has been an independent non-
executive director of the Company since January 2008.
She is also the Chairman of the audit committee of the
Company. She is a director of Billy Ho and Associates CPA
Limited and is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants;

a Fellow Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors;
and an Associate Member of the American Institute

of Certified Public Accountants. She holds a Master’s
degree in Business Administration from Oklahoma City
University, USA. Ms Ho has participated in community
services as a member of the Hong Kong Federation of
Zhong Shan Unions & Association Limited for years.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Jennifer CHEUNG Mei Ha, 55, has been the Company
Secretary since January 2005. She is a solicitor
practising in Hong Kong. She is also the Company
Secretary of Champion Technology and Digital HK.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

FUNG Kin Leung, 50, is the Group’s Head of Innovation
with responsibilities for managing the Group’s research and
development capacity to facilitate its global operations. He
is also a director of several of the Group’s subsidiaries and
a Senior Vice President of Microelectronics of Champion
Technology. Mr. Fung has over 25 years’ experience in
software and product development. He joined the Champion
Technology group in 1987 as Technical Manager, and

was promoted through the ranks to his current position. In
recent years, he has been focusing on the development of
information delivery systems to enhance wireless Internet
applications. He holds a Bachelor’s degree in Science and
Electronics from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University

and a Master’s degree in Electronics Engineering from

the University of Hong Kong. He is a Chartered Engineer
as well as a member of the Institution of Electrical
Engineers and the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers.
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Stephen GENTRY, 55, is the Group’s Head of International
Businesses and the Chief Executive of Multitone, with
responsibilities for formulating the overall policy and
development strategy for the Group’s international operations.
He is also a director of several of the Group’s subsidiaries.

He joined the Group in 1988 as financial accountant of the
UK operations, and has considerable experience working for
the Group’s various European and American operations. He
was promoted to the position of Chief Executive of Multitone
in 2003 and is a member of the Institute of Directors.

Frank ROTTHOFF, 48, is Managing Director of the
Group’s German operations. He joined the Group

in 2008 and has extensive experience in sales and
marketing management within the electronics industry.
His earlier career covered international sales of industrial
machinery and process technology before entering the
semiconductor sector in 1989. He was responsible for
the sales organisation of a leading European distributor
of electronic components before joining the Group.

Ron WRAY, 50, is Technical Director with responsibilities

for overseeing the Group’s technical operations as well as
developing the strategy for the Group’s investment in research
and development. He has over 25 years of experience in the
Radio and the Electronics Industry and the Royal Navy. He is
an associate member of the Institute of Sales and Marketing
Managers and a member of the Institute of Directors.

Philip LAWRENCE, 53, is Finance Director for the
Group’s European operations. He is a Fellow of the
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants and

has worked in finance for over 30 years. He has worked

in various companies ranging from large international
company in the world to SMEs (small medium enterprises)
covering engineering, fast moving consumer goods,
power, transport, care, warehousing and distribution.

Clive McGOVERN, 49, is Director of Sales for the Group’s
European operations having previously worked at a senior level
for technology businesses both in Europe and America. He

is a member of the Institute of Directors and of the Chartered
Institute of Marketing. He holds a Master of Science degree
and a Bachelor of Science degree. His business experience
encompasses Sales, Marketing, Support Engineering,
European Patent Law as well Accounting and Finance.



Helen BROWN, 57, joined the Group in 1991 and is
Head of Human Resources for the Group’s international
operations. She is qualified with the Institute of Personnel
Development and has extensive experience covering
employment legislation, industrial relations, change
management, recruitment and human resources policy.

Luiz Octavio VILLA-LOBOS, 50, is Managing Director
of the Group’s Brazilian operations with responsibility for
running and developing business in South America. He is
also Vice President of Interactive Knowledge Delivery for
Champion Technology group’s International Operations,
overseeing international clients’ requirements for enterprise
solutions. He joined the Group in 1997 and set up from

its inception the business in Brazil. He holds a Master’s
degree in Aerospace Engineering from Sup’Aero in

France and a MBA from the London Business School.

WANG Yu Peng, 46, was appointed as Chief Operating
Officer, e-Lottery Business of the Company in September
2005. He is the founder of a member company of the
Group which is a pioneer systems developer and service
provider in paperless betting systems in China, and a
graduate of Tsing Hua University in Computer Science. He
owns two invention patents in telephone betting systems.

Roy GOSS, 68, is Director of International Business, with
responsibility for the Group’s contract negotiation, licensee
management, agency distribution and customer liaison.

He is based in Macau and is also a director of several of

the Group’s subsidiaries. Mr. Goss is a seasoned expert in
finance and telecommunications, having served in the Middle
East and Macau with Cable and Wireless PLC for more than
17 years. He is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales. Prior to joining the
Champion Technology group, he was the Finance Director of
Macau Telecommunications Company, a subsidiary of Cable

and Wireless PLC in which he worked for more than 17 years.

Sl Ya Qing, 48, is Head of Systems Team for China
operation, with responsibility for the Group’s software
project development in the region. He oversees
outsourcing and distribution activities and manages
customer and licensee relationship. He started working
for the Group in 1985 after graduating from the Beijing
University of Posts and Telecommunications, where

he majored in communication and computers. He has
extensive experience in research and development of
network and information security and communication.

Ben CHAN Ping Yim, 47, is Head of Logistics and
Distribution in China. He regularly liaises with licensees,
agents and distributors, and coordinates the Group’s
licensing operations in the region. Prior to joining the Group
in 1994, Mr. Chan had worked in the field of marketing

and advertising in China. He has wide experience in
logistics and distribution of electronic products.

WAN Yan Chang, 59, is Head of Administration and
Accounting in China responsible for overseeing the day-to-
day administrative procedures for the Group’s quality control,
assurance of logistics operations, as well as licensee and
customer relationship in the territory. Ms. Wan joined the
Group in 1993. She has extensive experience in China trade.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in sales of systems and
licensing (including sales of systems products, software
licensing and customisation, provision of services and

leasing of systems products, provision of e-lottery services
and development and provision of IT solutions for e-gaming,
leisure and entertainment), and holding strategic investments
in advanced technology product development companies and
e-commerce projects.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2011

are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on page 27 and in the accompanying notes to the
consolidated financial statements. An interim dividend in

scrip form equivalent to HK0.20 cents per share, with a cash
option, was distributed to shareholders during the year. A final
dividend in scrip form equivalent to HKO.20 cents per share,
with a cash option, is proposed by the directors.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution represent
the aggregate of dividend reserve, special reserve and
retained profits of HK$245,660,000 (2010: HK$270,903,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors:
Dr. Paul Kan Man Lok
Mr. Lai Yat Kwong

Non-executive directors:
Mr. Leo Kan Kin Leung

Mr. Paul Michael James Kirby
Ms. Shirley Ha Suk Ling

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Frank Bleackley

Prof. Julia Tsuei Jo

Ms. Miranda Ho Mo Han

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Dr. Paul Kan Man Lok, Mr. Frank Bleackley and
Prof. Julia Tsuei Jo will retire by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election.

No director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Each of the non-executive directors has a service contract
with the Company for a term up to three years subject to
retirement by rotation as required by the Company’s Articles
of Association. The executive directors do not have any
service contract with the Company.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company confirms it has received from each of its
independent non-executive directors an annual confirmation
of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), and considers that
the independent non-executive directors are independent.
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SHARE OPTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS
TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Each of the Company, its ultimate holding company,
Champion Technology Holdings Limited (“Champion”), and a
fellow subsidiary, DIGITALHONGKONG.COM (“Digital HK”),
has a share option scheme under which eligible persons,
including directors of the Company, Champion, Digital HK or
any of their respective subsidiaries, may be granted options to
subscribe for shares of the Company, Champion and Digital
HK respectively.

(i) The Company
On 29 November 2002, the Company adopted the
share option scheme (the “Scheme”) which will expire
on 28 November 2012. No option has been granted
by the Company under the Scheme. Particulars of the
Scheme are set out in note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements.

(i) Champion
On 29 November 2002, Champion adopted a share
option scheme (the “Champion Option Scheme”). The
purpose of the Champion Option Scheme is to attract
and to retain quality personnel and other persons
and to provide them with incentive to contribute to
the business and operation of Champion and its
subsidiaries (the “Champion Group”). Under the
Champion Option Scheme, the directors of Champion
may grant options to any directors, employees,
consultants, advisors in respect of business, operation,
management, technology, legal, accounting and
financial matters of Champion, its subsidiaries or
affiliates or any discretionary trust whose discretionary
objects include the aforesaid persons or a company
beneficially owned by the aforesaid persons as well as
customers and suppliers of the Champion Group, to
subscribe for shares of Champion. The option granted
by Champion is exercisable at any time for a period
determined by its directors which will be less than ten
years from the date of grant. The exercise price per
share (subject to adjustment as provided therein) of
the option under the Champion Option Scheme is the
highest of (i) the nominal value of the shares; (i) the
closing price per share as stated in the daily quotation
sheet of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Exchange”) on the date of grant, which must
be a business day; and (i) the average closing price
per share as stated in the daily quotation sheet of
the Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant. No option has been
granted by Champion under the Champion Option
Scheme since its adoption.

Kantone Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011

BRENRESBREROZES ZEF

RRF - EEEERAREEMREEBRAR(EE ] R
RRMBAREBEE ((BBEEE ) SREBIRETE - &
b AEBAL(BEARR BERBBEEREZAZ
EAMBARZER) TERBREADIBEARARRF B
BERBBEEZRD -

() &AF
REZZEZTZF+—A=Z+hB  ARRHEMR—EER
B8 D - BN —_E——FE+—A-+tN
HIEm o AQRBEIR R8I LB I - FT 8IS
R ERA IR E M 28 -

(i) =BVE

R-FZ-F+—AZ+tHB  BERAIAEBERE
SE((BEBRETS ) - BEBRETSZENE
RESIRGEEEFSAEREMAL  WAKRSRMHE
B HEREHETERENBAR(IEBEEE]) 2%
BRZEFHER - RECSEERETS TEEF
ARAEMFREE - EMEAFSBE AR 2%
BEEE RN OEE g RMBEEZENE
= REE HAA BER - IptEAEREEmAeR
BABRELREMATREESHEE 2 RF AT
BREZEPRHUEERNBRE  URBEE K
N BEERBZBEEANEEEMETE < HIFHE
1T - MPTEEE 2 BIE AR 20 A BB IR B
HEE +F - RETEBLEABAREBRE LS
B AT B (R E R 2 SR EH SR A () B A
HRBEEAB(AREER) BEBA X HMAR AR
(125 & B RERMBRSBAD WHE K (i) B
ERDASNLAZSXAZSMERRERAHRER
Pty FEWTE  ZEHZ2RSERE - BERGBANK
T AR Y5 T A A ST B R B AT R A



SHARE OPTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS
TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

— continued

(iii)

DIGITAL HK

On 29 November 2002, Digital HK adopted a share
option scheme (the “DHK Option Scheme”). The
purpose of the DHK Option Scheme is to attract

and to retain quality personnel and other persons

and to provide them with incentive to contribute

to the business and operation of Digital HK and

its subsidiaries (the “Digital HK Group”). Under the
DHK Option Scheme, the directors of Digital HK

may grant options to any directors, employees,
consultants, advisors in respect of business, operation,
management, technology, legal, accounting and
financial matters of Digital HK, its subsidiaries or
affiliates or any discretionary trust whose discretionary
objects include the aforesaid persons or a company
beneficially owned by the aforesaid persons as well
as customers and suppliers of the Digital HK Group,
to subscribe for shares of Digital HK. Options granted
by Digital HK are exercisable at any time for a period
determined by its directors which will be less than

ten years from the date of grant. The exercise price
per share (subject to adjustment as provided therein)
of the option under the DHK Option Scheme is the
highest of (i) the nominal value of the shares; (i) the
closing price per share as stated in the daily quotation
sheet of the Exchange on the date of grant, which
must be a business day; and (i) the average closing
price per share as stated in the daily quotation sheet
of the Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant. No option has been
granted by Digital HK under the DHK Option Scheme
since its adoption.

Other than the share option schemes described above,

at no time during the year was the Company, its holding
company, any of its fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 30 June 2011, the interests of the directors of the
Company in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO”)) which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

EECRSEERAKR

REIZ——FRA=1TH  REFFIYEG (55 H
BIGHI]) B2 FMEARRRATIFE ZIRRAMPTRIE -
R LT EITAZRTETESFZZNRETADEARF
RZSRATEE ZBA - ARREBREARR A EAHE
BOEBE (ERRBH LB HRIIEXVED) 20 - RN
SESFHHEA 2T

Approximate
percentage

Number of the issued

Name of director Capacity of shares share capital

HERITREZ

oy 54 RHHBE B =

Securities of the Company Dr. Paul Kan Man Lok Corporate interest Note 1 54.26%
KRBEEBSH S+ AR i

Securities of Champion Dr. Paul Kan Man Lok Corporate interest Note 2 26.88%
HBEES [HRE NN DR FizE2

Securities of Digital HK Dr. Paul Kan Man Lok Corporate interest Note 3 74.48%
IS EBES S+ NEER B3

Notes: ffsT -
1. 4,065,783,235 shares of the Company were held by 1. 4,065,783,235 R AN FIRIN BB ERE - R ——F A

Champion. As at 30 June 2011, Lawnside International Limited
(“Lawnside”) had interest in approximately 26.88% of the entire
issued share capital of Champion. Lawnside is beneficially
wholly owned by Dr. Paul Kan Man Lok, who was deemed to
have corporate interest in the shares of the Company owned
by Champion.

2. 1,617,111,835 shares of Champion were held by Lawnside.
Dr. Paul Kan Man Lok was deemed to have corporate interest
in the shares of Champion owned by Lawnside. Lawnside
also held a convertible redeemable bond of Champion with
outstanding principal amount of HK$64,340,548.67 carrying
the right to convert the principal amount of the bond or any
part thereof into shares of Champion up to 19 September 2011
at the conversion price per share of the higher of (i) HK$0.70
(after adjustment on 7 January 2011 as a result of a rights
issue of Champion); and (ji) the volume-weighted average price
of shares of Champion for the 10 dealing days ending on the
day immediately preceding the date of a relevant conversion
notice multiplied by a factor of 0.8. The bond has not been
taken into account in calculating the percentage of the issued
share capital of Champion held by Lawnside.

3. 106,050,000 shares of Digital HK were held by Champion and
5,670,520 shares of Digital HK were held by Lawnside.
Dr. Paul Kan Man Lok was deemed to have corporate interests
in such shares held by Champion and Lawnside.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES — continued

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors or chief
executive of the Company had any interest or short position in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (as defined in Part XV

of the SFO) as at 30 June 2011 as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352

of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and

the Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had the following transactions with
Champion and its subsidiaries (other than the Group):

ESCHSERNAR -#

B EXFRBEEIN R-T——FRA=Z+TH  REEFK
HEHPIFE 2GR EARBTEATFE ZRRA MRS -
FRB( LT EITAZRSTETESFZZNRLETADEA AR
RZSABTERZBA - ARRSEFRITHA G EAE
ARB AR EE (EERESLBMEERGIEXVED)
ZB - MHRER D REF T A EREEOAR -

BESNEHNRBERS 2

RAFEAR  AEEETEREREA R (REERIN) BE
TR -

Nature of transactions X585 HK$’000
FHET
Fees paid by the Group to Champion for the provision of REBMTEIRKAER S (MERBAE
office premises and facilities, and management services, RREARERRE 2 ER
on cost basis 900
Underwriting commission paid to Champion BARFHBRAEESZ 2 BHEAS
in respect of the rights issue of the Company 2,440
3,340

In the opinion of the independent non-executive directors, the
above transaction relating to Champion’s provision of office
premises and facilities, and management services to the
Group (the “Management Agreement”) was carried out in the
usual course of business and on normal commercial terms
and are in accordance with the relevant agreement governing
it on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Details of such connected transactions are set out in note 32
to the consolidated financial statements.

The Management Agreement constitutes a continuing
connected transaction under the Listing Rules exempt from
the reporting, announcement and shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

BYEATEERE  DABMEERASEMREBAE
RBBAREERE 225 ([BEGE]D) IR BB EBTR
—REEIRRETT  REEEZFXH 2B -
ZZIGRBATFERE  ANAARATBRBENG

Ao fpe S
ZER

o

BRMER S ZHE BN AMIEMEMEES2 -

BEGHRIELTRIERSERERS  WERRET L
MRAEVIAERFZ PI - D RBERIRZRE -
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Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

Save as disclosed above, there is no contract of significance
between the Group and a controlling shareholder of the
Company (as defined in the Listing Rules) or any of its
subsidiaries, including the provision of services to the Group.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 30 June 2011, the following persons (other than the
directors or chief executive of the Company) had interests

in the share capital or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company

B EXCPRIEE &SN - ARABSEINE AR ESEER
FEERGRIERNFENEMERDAB R ERD R ES
RN HREEERERZERNAL -

B EXPAIEEE SN - AERBEARRRIEEMME LR 22
PR (EE R ETRAD WETLERERAQ(BRARA
SEEHES) -

FERR

R-ZZB——FXNA=ZTRH - REEHLPE GRS 386 1FR
EARAATHEZ EABRMALE - T AL (EARH
BEEQITHAARRIN RARR 2 RSB T IEA#

N
=<

under Section 336 of the SFO:
Approximate
percentage
Number of issued
Name of shareholders Capacity of shares share capital
HEBRITRAEZ
RREB 51 RHHBE B =
Champion (note 1) Beneficial owner 4,065,783,235 54.26%
o = (Pt 1) EmAEA
Shanghai Industrial Investment Corporate interest 554,740,000 7.40%
(Holdings) Company Limited (note 2)
FEEX(RE)BRLF(FHFE2) NEER
Notes: izt -
1. See note 1 to the “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in 1. B EX (8L BEEENL AR | —80MIEE1 -

Securities” section above.

2. Shanghai Industrial Investment (Holdings) Company Limited
had interest in 554,740,000 shares of the Company through
control over 100% interest in the shares of Shanghai Industrial
Financial (Holdings) Company Limited, which had direct interest
in 554,740,000 shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, no person had any interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company according to the register of interests kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO as at 30 June 2011.
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CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS,
WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company had no outstanding convertible securities,
options, warrants or other similar rights as at 30 June 2011
and there had been no exercise of any convertible securities,
options, warrants or similar rights during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group sells its products to customers who act as its
distributors, and purchases materials and components from
suppliers who act as its merchandisers.

For the year ended 30 June 2011, the aggregate amount of
turnover and purchases attributable to the five largest ultimate
customers and suppliers through these distributors and
merchandisers respectively represented less than 30% of the
Group'’s total turnover and purchases.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders,
which to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital, had any interest in the
share capital of the five largest customers or suppliers of the
Company.
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Directors’ Report
EEERE

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the Group for its employees
takes into account of the individuals’ merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided
by the Human Resources and Remuneration Committee of
the Company, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics. Details of the directors’ emoluments for the year
ended 30 June 2011 are set out in note 9 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to directors and eligible employees. Details of the
scheme are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, as at the date of this
report, there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of
the Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing
Rules.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company to re-appoint Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board

Paul Kan Man Lok
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong
30 September 2011

Kantone Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011

Fr R

AEEREZHFHBERDREBEREZRE  EERTFRE
METE °

RRABEEZHFNIBARBTZANERFMHEZESETE -
YESERARB2REELE  AARBARATELBRT S5
Ao BEREBE-_T——FARNA=ZTRIEFEZHFMHEEN
IREMTERMEM T -

ARFCHRM—RERESS  (FREEERAERERLZ
RE) - B2 HERRRE M BREN 28 -

NEERE

REARBAFZARERRBESHA > RARE A -
Bz ABIBERRE 8 LTHRAAPRARRE#ETT
B0 25% Z #E °

BB

FRIBIBIEE « WERT SFRIITRAR RZEA ZRER
BRARRZ EEBRRBEFREG LIZ2 -

AEFEm

B

[EpES

6
—E——FhA=+H



Corporate Governance Report

CRERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. It met all the code provisions
in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”)
set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) in the year ended 30 June 2011.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions on terms set out in the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules.

The Company has made specific enquiry of all directors of
the Company, and they have confirmed compliance with the
required standard set out in the Model Code during the year
ended 30 June 2011.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is governed by a board of directors (the “Board”)
which has the responsibility for leadership and control of

the Company. The directors are collectively responsible

for promoting the success of the Group by directing and
supervising the Group’s affairs. The Board set strategies and
directions for the Group’s activities with a view to developing
its business and enhancing shareholders value.

The Board held 9 meetings during the year ended 30 June
2011. All directors attended these meetings, except Mr.
Paul Michael James KIRBY who attended 8 of them. The
composition of the Board during the year was as follows:

Executive directors
Dr. Paul KAN Man Lok* (Chairman)
Mr. LAl Yat Kwong (Acting Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive directors

Mr. Leo KAN Kin Leung*

Ms. Shirley HA Suk Ling

Mr. Paul Michael James KIRBY

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Frank BLEACKLEY

Ms. Miranda HO Mo Han

Prof. Julia TSUEI Jo

* Dr. Paul KAN Man Lok and Mr. Leo KAN Kin Leung are brothers.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company are segregated, with a clear division of
responsibilities.

The Chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board,
ensuring its effectiveness in all aspects of its role and for
setting its agenda and taking into account any matters
proposed by other directors for inclusion in the agenda.
Through the Board, he is responsible for ensuring that good
corporate governance practices and procedures are followed
by the Group.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the day-to-day
management of the Group’s business.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The non-executive directors of the Company are appointed
for a term of up to 3 years ending on the date on which the
director shall retire by rotation at the Company’s annual
general meeting in accordance with the Code and the Articles
of Association of the Company.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Human Resources and Remuneration Committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) has 5 members, comprising Ms.
Miranda HO Mo Han, Mr. Frank BLEACKLEY and Prof. Julia
TSUEI Jo (independent non-executive directors), and Mr. Leo
KAN Kin Leung and Ms. Shirley HA Suk Ling (non-executive
directors). The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Ms.
Miranda HO Mo Han.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee follow
the guidelines set out in the Code and it is responsible for,
among other things, making recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s policy for the remuneration of directors
and senior management.

During the year ended 30 June 2011, the Remuneration
Committee held 2 meetings and work performed included
reviewing the Group’s remuneration policy for its executive
directors and senior management and their levels of
remuneration. All members attended these meetings.

Kantone Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011

ERERTHREAR

ARAEERTBRRZBEETHN - WENRE RS
EiE -

IFRARERREESRS MRESIHAUANMBETEES
2B WHARAEBTERE  URERHEMESHMREY
ZEEHAFEAN - EREFS  RARERASEHEEST
RFEEERERIIEMF o

TRAZRAEEBAEEZ ARER -

FHTES

RRAFBEATEE 2 EHRERRIF  REFRETR LA
REZBBERMAIRARBZBERBFAE LW ERER
Rk -

EEFHM

ANERRFWEES ((HFMEES ) AKX EHAK 8
FE{a] S 2 £ ~ Frank BLEACKLEY 5t 4 R &= A% (987 3F
WITER) ULRHERAERERBR LT GERTESR) -
MRMBLLAFNEESZER -

AARERETRIMEZESIGIT M EZ R e BgaE
HBEZ —ARARREZRSREEABNFIHBEAE
FeRbES-

FHEEERNEE—T——FRNA=THILEFEARKET2
REH  HATFEREHNAXRTNTEERSMERARZ

INE R

B R EEZHHKE  ERBALERESS



NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Nomination Committee has 6 members, comprising

Ms. Miranda HO Mo Han, Mr. Frank BLEACKLEY and Prof.
Julia TSUEI Jo (independent non-executive directors), Ms.
Shirley HA Suk Ling and Mr. Paul Michael James KIRBY (non-
executive directors), and Dr. Paul KAN Man Lok (executive
director). This Committee is chaired by Ms. Miranda HO Mo
Han.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee have
been determined with reference to the Code.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for identifying
potential new directors and making recommendations to

the Board for decision. A director appointed by the Board

is subject to re-election by shareholders at the first annual
general meeting after his/her appointment. All directors are
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every 3 years.
In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association,
one third of the directors are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election by shareholders at each annual general
meeting of the Company.

Potential new directors are selected on the basis of their
qualifications, skills and experience which the Nomination
Committee considers will make a positive contribution to the
performance of the Board.

No new director was nominated for appointment during the
year ended 30 June 2011.

The Nomination Committee held 2 meetings during the year
ended 30 June 2011 and work performed included reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board and the
independence of the independent non-executive directors of
the Company. All members attended these meetings.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the accounts of the Company. As at 30 June 2011, the
directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt
upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Accordingly, the directors have prepared the financial
statements of the Company on a going-concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditors about their
financial reporting are set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report attached to the Company’s Financial Statements for
the year ended 30 June 2011.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control system with an aim to safeguard
the shareholders’ investment and the Company’s assets in
compliance with the provisions of the Code. The purpose is
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatements, errors, losses or fraud, and to
manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in achieving the
Group’s business objectives.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 30 June 2011, the fee for the Company’s

external auditors for audit services was HK$2,155,000 (2010:
HK$2,168,000) and that for non-audit services mainly relating
to taxation matters and other services was HK$624,000 (2010:
HK$165,000).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has 5 members, comprising Ms.
Miranda HO Mo Han, Mr. Frank BLEACKLEY and Prof. Julia
TSUEI Jo (independent non-executive directors), and Mr. Leo
KAN Kin Leung and Mr. Paul Michael James KIRBY (non-
executive directors). The Chairperson of this Committee is
Ms. Miranda HO Mo Han.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee follow the
guidelines set out in the Code. The Audit Committee is
responsible for, among other things, reviewing the Group’s
financial information and its financial reporting and internal
control system, including the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget. The Audit Committee reports to the
Board any significant issues relating to its terms of reference.

During the year ended 30 June 2011, the Audit Committee
held 2 meetings and work performed included reviewing
the Group’s interim and annual results as well as its internal
control system. All members attended these meetings.

Kantone Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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Independent Auditor’s Report

18 M % B R

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF KANTONE HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements

of Kantone Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 27 to 92, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 30 June 2011, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2 EN R E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY — continued

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 30
June 2011 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 September 2011
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SmeEEERER

For the Year Ended 30 June 2011 #HZE=Z——FA=1+HILEFE

2011 2010
—E——F —ET—TF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B3 FHEx FAT
Turnover ] 6 1,341,006 1,289,616
Cost of sales SHERAR (1,059,997) (982,529)
Gross profit EF4a%5a 281,009 307,087
Other income HAb YA 7 5,840 6,492
Distribution costs PaK =1 %N (38,979) (39,455)
General and administrative expenses —RERITE (87,609) (94,728)
Impairment losses recognised for deposits — Fti% & & T8~ FA 3 A AX
and prepaid development costs FrigEsR 2 B 1R 18 (65,720) (85,800)
Research and development costs expensed 7% & 5 25 i 248 %2 (9,768) (12,896)
Finance costs IR IDN 8 (586) (470)
Profit before taxation & 7 AE A 9 84,187 80,230
Taxation credit (charge) FRIEE S () 10 133 (121)
Profit for the year IR A 84,320 80,109
Other comprehensive (expense) income: HEfbam () s :
Exchange difference arising on MEREEZ
translation &N =R (2,134) 5,001
Total comprehensive income for the year AN &2 i sk 4058 82,186 85,110
Profit for the year attributable to: FEIEARFEERF
Owners of the Company RREHER A 84,025 82,955
Non-controlling interests Sl 295 (2,846)
84,320 80,109
Total comprehensive income for the year {5 NS 2 E S
attributable to: 1azE
Owners of the Company VNN Z =N 81,797 87,929
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR AR R 389 (2,819
82,186 85,110
Earnings per share — basic BRAF — EX 12 HK1.44 cents &1l  HK1.57 cents &1l

EREEARAR

S S i
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e IR R R

At 30 June 2011 R=ZF——FXA=1H

2011 2010
—E——fF —E—TF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5E FET FHET
Non-current assets kREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB K& 13 48,556 39,471
Development costs for systems R R s 2 R
and networks %N 14 1,025,301 1,272,570
Goodwill EES 15 36,795 36,795
Intangible assets B AE 16 = 590
Available-for-sale investments At ERE 17 - -
Deposits and prepaid development costs &% R T FIEER 2 18 1,490,990 1,099,864
2,601,642 2,449,290
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 19 25,559 24,775
Trade and other receivables FEURE 5 R H A BR X 20 458,756 457,294
Taxation recoverable AU el FR IR 10 11
Deposits, bank balances and cash TR RITESRNERS 21 248,552 126,547
732,877 608,627
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables FERTE 5 R EMBRK 22 72,207 71,202
Warranty provision RERE 23 1,445 1,142
Taxation payable P IE = 8
Bank borrowings wITEE
— amount due within one year — R—FRE|H 24 33,198 18,183
Overdrafts BEY 21 5,488 —
112,338 90,535
Net current assets MEVEEFE 620,539 518,092
Total assets less current liabilities BERERRBSEE 3,222,181 2,967,382
Non-current liabilities IREBEE
Bank borrowings RITEE
— amount due after one year — R—FEEH 24 = 29,050
Retirement benefit obligations RORAE TR 25 61,337 61,786
Deferred taxation IERERLIE 26 169 281
61,506 91,117
Net assets BEFE 3,160,675 2,876,265
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2011 2010
—ET——F —ET—TF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
B3 FEx FAT
Capital and reserves B #HE

Share capital &N 27 749,253 523,421
Reserves HiE 2,407,495 2,349,517

Equity attributable to owners of KRAREB A
the Company FEfh S 3,156,748 2,872,938
Non-controlling interests IR AR R 2 3,927 3,327
3,160,675 2,876,265

The consolidated financial statements on pages 27 to 92
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 30 September 2011 and are signed on its behalf
by:

PAUL KAN MAN LOK f& 3z &t
DIRECTOR &%

FOAEFRAMBZGEEUBEREER-E——FNA
=S THRESSRENRETIE YA TEERREE

LAI YAT KWONG % B 3

DIRECTOR &%

S
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FRERTERSER

=
For the Year Ended 30 June 2011 #HZ=ZF——

FRA=ZTHLEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ENGIE 2PN 31
Non-
Share Share  Dividend Translation  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
R RAER
REx ROHBE RERE EXRE AR Ait BRER BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT THT THT FAT FAT THT FHT FAT
At 1 July 2009 R-ZEZNE+A—A 514,212 797,616 7,713 1263 1,468,583 2,789,377 6,146 2,795,528
Profit (loss) for the year KEERR(EE) = = - - 82,955 82,955 (2,846) 80,109
Exchange difference arising on translation & B4 7 [E ¥ 2% = = — 4,974 — 4,974 27 5,001
Total comprehensive income for the year AN 8 2 EYiz5 4% - - - 4,974 82,955 87,929 (2,819 85,110
Dividends for the year AEERE
— interim — i = = 10,357 = (10,357) = = =
— final — % = = 10,468 = (10,468) = = =
Dividends paid BEARE = = (4,368) - - (4,368) - (4,368)
Issue of shares as scrip dividend PARRR B TRk 9,200 4,493 (13,702) - - - - -
9,209 4,493 2,755 - (082 4,368) - (4,368)
At 30 June 2010 RZZ-TFXA=1H 523,421 802,109 10,468 6,227 1,530,713 2,872,938 3327 2,876,265
Proft for the year REEEF - - = = 84,025 84,025 295 84,320
Exchange difference arising on translation & fEL 7 EH =58 - - - (2,228) - (2,228) 94 (2,134)
Total comprehensive income for the year AN F 2 E Wiz 4458 - - - (2,228) 84,025 81,797 389 82,186
Rights issue of shares IR 212,166 - - - - 212,166 - 212,166
Transaction costs attributable to HRFEEZR S
rights issue of shares = = (8,790) - - - (8,790) - (3,790)
Acquisition of additional interest in BRNEAREERR
a subsidiary through placement of REHBAR
shares by the subsidiary BIMER - - - - @11) 211) 211 -
Dividends for the year AEERE
— interim — i = = 10,608 = (10,608) = = =
— final — K = = 14,985 = (14,985) = = =
Dividends paid BRRE = - (6,152) = = (6,152) - (6,152)
Issue of shares as scrip dividend PARRR B M3 fTikdn 13,666 1,258 (14,924) - - - - -
225,832 (2,532) 4517 — (25,804) 202,013 211 202,224
At 30 June 2011 R=B-—-£XA=+H 749253 799,577 14,985 3999 1588934 3,156,748 3927 3,160,675
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

fv?/\fﬁﬁuwiﬁé

For the Year Ended 30 June 2011

—E——FRA=THLFE

2011 2010
—E——F —ET—TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT FHT
Cash flows from operating activities KRR 2 RSN
Profit before taxation B R AT ) 84,187 80,230
Adjustments for: SRR
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, HEME  BEKERE
plant and equipment 2 (W) Et8 (38) 15
Interest income F B A (4,629) (4,710)
Interest on bank and other borrowings RITREMEE ZF 8 586 470
Amortisation of development costs R B 2 FEKR AR
for systems and networks 2 s 437,832 371,310
Amortisation of intangible assets A B 2 590 2,360
Depreciation of property, plant LE N
and equipment e 9,128 7,608
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEHBERE
investments 2 Wz (31) -
Impairment losses recognised for ke RFENFRERA
deposits and prepaid development FriEsR 2 R E
costs a8 65,720 85,800
Operating cash flows before movements 4384 & B B 5 2 484
in working capital Ren 593,345 543,083
Decrease (increase) in inventories BFEZRA (Em) 1,047 (2,286)
Decrease in trade and other receivables FEURE 5 R H MR 2R 2,226 4,421
Decrease in trade and other payables BB S REAMERKZ B (8,503) (10,639)
Increase (decrease) in warranty provision REBE 2= MOFL) 106 (217)
Net cash generated from operations BIBEE R ®FR 588,221 534,362
Taxation in other jurisdictions paid BEAME L B R 2 BT ] (999)
Net cash from operating activities EEBRE 2R EFEE 588,214 533,363
Cash flows from investing activities KEEH RS
Deposits and prepayment paid BRARG RSN
in respect of development costs Z B RER
for systems and networks FRIB (647,400) (672,594)
Additions to property, plant and //J\E%% B &
equipment B (14,918) (14,749
Interest received BUF B 4,629 4,710
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BB RERERS
plant and equipment ZFRIB 97 13
Proceeds from disposal of HETHRHEREMS
available-for-sale investments Z I8 31 85,122
Capital receipts from available-for-sale BRI SR E R
investments LB = 47,355
Net cash used in investing activities BRSBTS FE (657,561) (550,143
BEEEERRAAE —E-—FEFR
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

SERERB T

For the Year Ended 30 June 2011 BE=-T——F X A=1+HIFE

2011 2010
—E——F —T—TF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
Cash flows from financing activities MEEFHZIBER
Proceeds from rights issue of shares HAR P15 FIE 212,166 =
Transaction costs attributable to HRMEEZR S
rights issue of shares {33! (3,790) =
New bank loans raised FTIEIRITE R 19,000 14,000
Repayment of bank loans EEBRITER (35,492) (3,486)
Dividends paid BEAIIRE (6,152) (4,368)
Interest paid BEATFLE (586) (470)
Repayment of block discounting loans EERXRITINER = (176)
Net cash from financing activities RE RSB RS FRE 185,146 5,500
Net increase (decrease) in cash and RERBEFE2EMORL)
cash equivalents JRER 115,799 (11,280)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FYRERRE
of the year 5 126,547 138,340
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes B 8 718 (613)
Cash and cash equivalents at end FHERAS KBS
of the year R 243,064 126,547
Represented by: B
Deposits, bank balances and cash TR RITERNERS 248,552 126,547
Overdrafts BY (5,488) —
243,064 126,547

Kantone Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

%?/\,ﬁ%ﬁillﬁ“_%

For the Year Ended 30 June 2011 —Z——FXA=THILFE

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of the
Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on the

Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Exchange”). Its ultimate and immediate
holding company is Champion Technology Holdings
Limited (“Champion”), a company which was originally
incorporated in the Cayman Islands but subsequently
re-domiciled to Bermuda, and its shares are also listed
on the Main Board of the Exchange. The addresses
of the registered office and principal place of business
of the Company are disclosed in the Corporate
Information section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented

in Hong Kong dollar because the Company is a public
company with its shares listed on the Main Board of
the Exchange. The functional currency of the Company
is United States dollar.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note
33.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied a number

of amendments and interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) that are mandatorily effective for accounting
periods beginning on 1 July 2010.

The application of those amendments and
interpretations in the current year has had no material
effect on the amounts reported in these consolidated
financial statements and/or disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — continued

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised standards and amendments that have been
issued but are not yet effective.

T —ERASTALEE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR EMNEE

For the Year Ended 30 June 2011 #HZE=

RN RAEET B RN B REER

K%@Iﬂkiﬁiﬂﬂﬁﬁéﬁﬂﬂ AR AR 2 H R R
BRI RAEFTA -

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13
HKAS 1 (Amendments)

HKAS 12 (Amendments)
HKAS 19 (Revised 2011)
HKAS 24 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised 2011)
HKAS 28 (Revised 2011)

HK(FRIC) — INT 14
(Amendments)

Improvements to HKFRSs issued
in 2010 that are effective for
annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2011

Disclosures — Transfers of
financial assets?

Financial instruments®

Consolidated financial
statements®

Joint arrangements®

Disclosure of interests
in other entities®

Fair value measurement?

Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income*

Deferred tax: Recovery of
underlying assets®

Employee benefits®

Related party disclosures’
Separate financial statements®
Investments in associates

and joint ventures®

Prepayments of a minimum
funding requirement’

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2011.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 July 2011.

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2013.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 July 2012.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2012.

* IFRIC represents the IFRS Interpretations Committee.

The amendments to HKAS 32 titled “Classification
of Rights Issues” address the classification of certain
rights issues denominated in a foreign currency as
either an equity instrument or as a financial liability.

Since the Company offered the rights issue pro rata to

all of its existing owners of the same class of its own
non-derivative equity instruments, the rights issue is
not classified as derivative liabilities.

Kantone Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2011
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — continued

HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits” (Revised 2011) is
effective for the Group’s annual reporting periods
beginning on 1 July 2013. HKAS 19 (Revised 2011)
has made revised requirements on employee benefits,
including the following:

o Eliminating the option to defer the recognition
of gains and losses, known as the “corridor
method”.

o Streamlining the presentation of changes in

assets and liabilities arising from defined benefit
plans, including requiring remeasurements to

be presented in other comprehensive income,
thereby separating those changes from changes
that may perceive to be the result of an entity’s
day-to-day operations.

o Enhancing the disclosure requirements
for defined benefit plans, providing better
information about the characteristics of defined
benefit plans and the risks that entities are
exposed to through participation in those plans.

o Modifying accounting for termination benefits,
including distinguishing benefits provided in
exchange for service and benefits provided in
exchange for the termination of employment.

. Clarifying miscellaneous issues, including
the classification of employee benefits,
current estimates of mortality rates, tax and
administration costs and risk-sharing and
conditional indexation features.

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” introduces new
requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial assets and will be effective from 1 January
2013, with earlier application permitted. The Standard
requires all recognised financial assets that are

within the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement” to be measured at
either amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that (i) are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows
and (i) have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost.
All other debt investments and equity investments are
measured at fair value. The application of HKFRS 9
might affect the classification and measurement of the
Group’s financial assets.
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Kantone Holdings Limited

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — continued

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements that deal with
consolidated financial statements. Under HKFRS 10,
there is only one basis for consolidation, that is control.
In addition, HKFRS 10 includes a new definition of
control that contains three elements: (a) power over

an investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee, and (c) ability to
use its power over the investee to affect the amount

of the investor’s returns. Extensive guidance has been
added to HKFRS 10 to deal with complex scenarios.
Overall, the application of HKFRS 10 requires
considerable judgment. The application of HKFRS 10
might result in the Group no longer consolidating some
of its investees, and consolidating investees that were
not previously consolidated.

The directors of the Company are in the process of
assessing the impact of HKAS 19 (Revised 2011),
HKFRS 9, HKFRS 10 and HKAS 27 (as revised in
2011).

Apart for the above, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of the new and revised
Standards and amendments will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis. Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of the consideration

given in exchange for goods.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Annual Report 2011
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR EMNEE

For the Year Ended 30 June 2011
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate

the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is
achieved where the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed

of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the effective
date of acquisition or up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with those used by other
members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-
controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a
subsidiary is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this

results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. Prior to 1 July 2009, losses applicable to

the non-controlling interests in excess of the non-
controlling interests in the subsidiary’s equity were
allocated against the interests of the Group except

to the extent that the non-controlling interests had a
binding obligation and were able to make an additional
investment to cover the losses.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries prior to 1 July 2009

Increases in interests in existing subsidiaries were
treated in the same manner as the acquisition of
subsidiaries, with goodwill or a bargain purchase gain
being recognised where appropriate. For decreases
in interests in subsidiaries regardless of whether the
disposals would result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries, the difference between the
consideration received and the adjustment to non-
controlling interests was recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR EMNEE

For the Year Ended 30 June 2011 #HE=ZZ——FA=1THILFE

Kantone Holdings Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries — continued

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries on or after 1 July 2009

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiary are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners
of the Company.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses and is presented separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the acquisition. A cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, and whenever there is an indication that

the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an
acquisition in a financial year, the cash-generating

unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested

for impairment before the end of that financial year.
When the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the
impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and
then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the
basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly
in profit or loss. An impairment loss for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating units, the
attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included
in the determination of the amount of profit or loss on
disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when
goods are delivered and title has passed.

Service income is recognised when the services are
rendered.

Income from licensing is recognised when the relevant
licensing agreements are formally concluded.

Guaranteed distribution income from certain available-
for-sale investments where the Group is contracted to
receive a pre-determined minimum sum over the period
of the projects is allocated to accounting periods so

as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the
investment in these available-for-sale investments.
Income from other available-for-sale investments are
recognised when the Group’s right to receive the
distributions has been established.

Rental income, including rental invoiced in advance
from assets under operating leases, is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the relevant lease term.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR EMNEE

For the Year Ended 30 June 2011 #HE=ZZ——FA=1THILFE

Kantone Holdings Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and
buildings held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purposes
are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method, at the
following rates per annum:

Freehold land Nil

Buildings on freehold 50 years

Leasehold land and Over the shorter of the
buildings remaining unexpired

terms of the relevant
leases or 50 years
Plant and machinery and ~ 10%- 50%
telecommunications
networks

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element
as a finance or an operating lease separately based on
the assessment as to whether substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of each element
have been transferred to the Group. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leasehold interests in the land element
and building element of the lease at the inception of the
lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Leasehold land and building — continued

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments

can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that

is accounted for as an operating lease is presented

as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is released over
the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and building elements, the entire lease is generally
classified as a finance lease and accounted for as
property, plant and equipment, unless it is clear that
both elements are operating leases, in which case the
entire lease is classified as an operating lease.

Impairment (other than goodwill, development
costs for systems and networks and financial
assets)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,

the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

Intangible assets

On initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
separately and from business combinations are
recognised at cost and at fair value at the acquisition
date respectively. After initial recognition, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset are measured at the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or loss
in the period when the asset is derecognised.

3.

TESEHER - #

BENBEz2LHREF — &

fiRe Al SEM DAL E VR - BIARIIARKEEHEZHE
&+ RS NER A SRR R ASIE [TRAEER
B WRBERARAE SRR AR o fiRBER] 5
R MEFE D MO RBEEFR - IBRFEEE
—RESERMELE - IARIEDE - BERR
B BRIEMER D BT R FEE REEBAN - RULIE
AT BOENRBALEHED -

BE(EE  RERAGZHBRAUR EBEER
M)

RS HTmR  AEBeEREEE 2 REE @ A
EERBAEABRBERZEEEHRNERR -
HREMZEDR - MG EFEEZ TN E S B
EEREBERE(WA) - GREEZ MBS RMA
SHOREREE  MEEZREESRELATKE S
7 o REEEEEER AR -

WEABERESE ZEEZFAEERASEEE
Hibst 2 TRE SR - HEZMZEEETESNZ
BERBAEFEIL BERRERENREEE 2 RE
18 - P E 2R EEIEREAER BEA -

BREE

MR TERE - REBIWBREBEGES 2 &
TERED LR R Z AR R FEEER - RHA
R AERFRER BV EERKAR R #
SRR REURERBESIR - IEBFRERZEY
BEREMEAIERFHAEREEN -

RRERBLEEMELZBERY EREHIEFRE
HEEREEZEAE  UNZEERKERZH
MRS ER o

S

41



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR EMNEE

For the Year Ended 30 June 2011 BE=-T——F X A=1+HIFE

Kantone Holdings Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised

in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.

Deposits and prepaid development costs

Deposits and prepaid development costs represent the
development costs for systems and networks projects
under construction. Deposits and prepaid development
costs are transferred to development costs for
systems and networks when it is implemented for

its intended use. Deposits and prepaid development
costs are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
impairment losses.

Research and development expenditures
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Development costs for systems and networks
Development costs for systems and networks

are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Development costs for systems and networks
represent all direct costs incurred by the Group in
setting up systems and networks, including the cost
of equipment, development cost and subcontracting
expenditure. Such assets are recognised only if all of
the following conditions are met:

= the technical feasibility of completing the asset
so that it will be available for use or sale;

— the intention to complete the asset and use or
sell it;

— the ability to use or sell the asset;

Annual Report 2011

TESTHER - #

HE

FUBE SR 2 P A R I 3 3R B i 22
BAZHEE  BIERERE - A EMBEESIE
KEMEE -

FEBERHEA
KEHEZHSWRANEHESEHAREREERR
BAER - B RLHEEREZ RV EEKA SN
AFEEEEZ RS YN HEHNRERELE
HERRBFX -

EEBFERATA
REMENFNIZAREE FHABREERRHA
* o

B RANREBEKRE

Be MIANRERAEERET 2 AR MERER ZH
BRA - e RENFAERAREREREERES
BREEZBLBEZAEKAE - 1E RIAN KA
TR AR & 2EHREE R o

A S
MEES 2 L EREELERRAERBFX °

R R M2 BB
B0 e AR 2 B BB AR O3 PR AR L 18 R AT 8 I A
o] REHREE B

R BBz AR AR ARENRILZRLBE
RELZMAEEERAN  BRERERA  RERAR
SNHIER - R FEEEEN TIIMB G ERE T &

At -

—  BERBETAAMERSIHE 2 RMAITIE

— FEREETKRIETIAMERSKEEZER

BAEERRIHEBE 2T



SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Development costs for systems and networks —

continued

— how the asset will generate probable future
economic benefits. Among other things, the
entity can demonstrate the existence of a market
for the output of the asset or the asset itself or,
if it is to be used internally, the usefulness of the
asset;

= the availability of adequate technical,
financial and other resources to complete the
development and to use or sell the asset; and

— the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the asset during its development.

Development costs that do not fulfil the above
conditions are recognised as expenses in the period
in which it is incurred. Development costs for systems
and networks which are implemented for its intended
use and fulfil the above conditions are amortised

on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives, subject to a maximum of five years. Where

the recoverable amount of development costs for
systems and networks has declined below their
carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced

to reflect the decline in value. Where an impairment
loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment

loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

An item of development costs for systems and
networks is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the item is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR EMNEE

For the Year Ended 30 June 2011 #HE=ZZ——FA=1THILFE

Kantone Holdings Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are mainly classified

into one of the two categories, including loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. Al
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace. The accounting policies adopted in
respect of each category of financial assets are set out
below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums

or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including trade and
other receivables, deposits, bank balances and cash)
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment of financial assets
below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated or not classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

For available-for-sale debt investments with guaranteed
return, payments receivable each year for investments
are apportioned between income and reduction of

the carrying value of the investments so as to reflect

a constant periodic rate of return. Subsequent to

initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets
are measured at fair value. Changes in fair value

are recognised in equity, until the financial asset is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which
time, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
in equity is removed from equity and recognised in
profit or loss (see accounting policy on impairment of
financial assets below).

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, they are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses
at the end of the reporting period (see accounting
policy on impairment of financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of the reporting period. Financial
assets are impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have
been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of
impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

o it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR EMNEE

For the Year Ended 30 June 2011 #HE=ZZ——FA=1THILFE

Kantone Holdings Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

For certain categories of financial assets, such as
trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be
impaired individually are subsequently assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments
and an increase in the number of delayed payments.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
and is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of

the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in

a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised

cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

For available-for-sale debt investments, impairment
losses are subsequently reversed through profit or loss
if an increase in the fair value of the investment can

be objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and

the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences

a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies in
respect of financial liabilities and equity instruments are
set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
bank borrowings and overdrafts are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the
financial assets are transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition
of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid or payable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR EMNEE

For the Year Ended 30 June 2011 #HE=ZZ——FA=1THILFE

Kantone Holdings Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Provision

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation as a result of a past event, and it

is probable that the Group will be required to settle
that obligation. Provisions are measured at the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect is material).

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the first-in,
first-out method.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period

of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
because it excludes items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable and deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Taxation — continued

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation

of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that

it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments

in subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to

the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based
on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted

or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Group expects, at the
end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred
tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates
to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the deferred
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively.
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Kantone Holdings Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in its functional currency (i.e. the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the Group’s assets and liabilities
denominated in functional currency of US$ and those of
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting
period, and their income and expenses are translated
at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity (the translation
reserve). Exchange differences are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which the foreign operation is
disposal of.

Retirement benefit cost

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes are charged as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to contributions.

For the Group’s defined benefit retirement benefit
scheme, the cost of providing benefits is determined
using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial
valuation being carried out every three years and
updated annually at the end of the reporting period.
Actuarial gains and losses which exceed 10% of the
greater of the present value of the Group’s defined
benefit obligations and the fair value of scheme assets
at the end of the previous reporting period are amortised
over the expected average remaining working lives

of the participating employees. Past service cost is
recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits
are already vested, and otherwise is amortised on a
straight-line basis over the average period until the
amended benefits become vested.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Retirement benefit cost — continued

The amount recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position represents the present value of the
defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised
actuarial gains and losses and unrecognised past
service cost, and as reduced by the fair value of
scheme assets. Any assets resulting from this
calculation is limited to unrecognised actuarial losses
and past service cost, plus the present value of
available refunds and reductions in future contribution
to the scheme.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

Estimated impairment of trade receivables
When there is objective evidence of impairment loss,
the Group takes into consideration the estimation

of future cash flows. The amount of impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. As at 30 June
2011, the carrying amount of trade receivables is
HK$339,128,000 (2010: HK$331,412,000).

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated. The value
in use calculation requires the Group to estimate

the future cash flows expected to arise from the
cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate

in order to calculate the present value. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise. As at 30 June
2011 and 2010, the carrying amount of goodwill was
HK$36,795,000. Details of the recoverable amount
calculation are disclosed in note 15.

TESEHER - #
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RNEEUBIRRRER 2 SR IEERBMAEZR
B TERARERZEERE NORHER 2 BERBEK
AEH T  ARRFTEEEZ A FEEHR - Kt
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TERAS 55 DA 8 R AR R N 15T 81 2 R ARSI 2
HIE -

AT FREE 2 EBRIR

ATHREBARZEEZRR - WERREMERY
AET T HEE 2 M EEHR - WERSFEHT— I,ﬁff
BEERNBEENABEZREERREANRHE

FEW E 5 BRI 2 fhETR(E
WERBEEAREHRBEER  ~AEESEEY
KRB RIEH AR - W@Eﬂ%%@ém@ﬁﬁfKZEé
HEANCHEERERFE (ARG ERITE
Z:-*SB?%%\JX)EEEEZ%WRXIE@m(T@ﬁ.EHuﬁiﬁ
B AREEEE) 2REMER 2 28t - HER
KRB RONIEH B gEEERRELISE -
RZZE——FEX A=+ BRESERZEEES
339,128,000/ L (=ZE—Z 4 : 331,412,000/ L) °
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EXAERBAZARBESRANUEGE 2R KL
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY — continued

Development costs for systems and networks

and deposits and prepaid development costs

(1) Estimated useful life
The estimated useful life of the assets reflects
the directors’ estimate of the periods that the
Group intends to derive future economic benefits
from the use of the development. Where the
actual useful life is less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise.

(2)  Estimated impairment
Determining whether development costs for
systems and networks, and deposits and
prepaid development costs are impaired
requires an estimation of the value in use on
a project-by-project basis. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flow expected to arise from the
continuing use of the assets and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. The Groups estimates its cash flow
projection covering a five-year period based on
financial budgets approved by management and
a discount rate of 7% (2010: 8%) per annum.
In the event that the developers fail to perform
their obligations to develop the technologies
as required, the Group will estimate the future
cash flows from recovering the deposits and
prepaid development costs from developers.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise.
As at 30 June 2011, the carrying amounts of
development costs for systems and networks
and deposits and prepaid development
costs were HK$1,025,301,000 (2010:
HK$1,272,570,000) and HK$1,490,990,000
(2010: HK$1,099,864,000) respectively.

Kantone Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY — continued

Recoverability of deposits and prepaid
development costs

As at 30 June 2011, the Group had deposits and
prepaid development costs of HK$1,490,990,000
(2010: HK$1,099,864,000). The deposits and
prepayments were paid to developers to develop
products or technological knowhow (the “Technology
Projects”) as per the requirements set out by the
Group.

As at 30 June 2011, the aged analysis of the deposits
and prepaid development costs comprised of balance
less than one year of HK$647,400,000 (2010:
HK$672,594,000), balance between one to two years
of HK$482,040,000 (2010: HK$427,270,000) and
balance over two years of HK$361,550,000 (2010: nil).

The deposits and prepaid development costs of the
Group were paid to some developers in respect of
some Technology Projects. As at 30 June 2011, the
deposits paid to the largest developer and the deposits
paid for the largest project under development
accounted for 40% (2010: 47%) and 69% (2010: 35%)
of the total deposits and prepaid development costs
respectively.

The directors of the Company consider these deposits
and prepaid development costs can be recovered

on the assumption of the success of launching the
Technology Projects and the estimated life for the
application of the Technology Projects is not less than
5 years. The directors also consider the revenue and
operating costs of the Technology Projects in coming
years will be in line with the Group’s budgets, taking
into accounts of economical factors. In the event that
the Technology Projects are not as well received by
the market as anticipated, these deposits and prepaid
development costs may not be fully recovered and
impairment loss may arise.

AT REE ZEEZRR -2

W B 4% & % 7849 BA 8% A 2 AT R

RZE——FXAZ+H A&£EBEZ2EERE
- B8 2% Bk ZX 51,490,990,00008 T ( =& — & F ¢
1,099,864,000/87T) ° & RENFENZ N FEE
o LARASRE 2 BRFERE R &R ((RHRE
Bl -

RIZE——FE X NA=Z+H R RBARAEKAZE
DT B IE LR — F 2 &5 5 647,400,0007% T (=
T—T4F : 672,594,000/870)  —FEMEZ LS A
482,040,000 7t ( =& — ZT 4 : 427,270,000 7t )
N A b 2 #5854 361,550,0008 T ( — B —F4F :
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5.

Kantone Holdings Limited

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

BE-Z——FA=1THLFE

ERITHA

Categories of financial instruments SRTEER
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Financial assets CRIEE
Loans and receivables (including deposits, BER R EWERR(BIEER
bank balances and cash) RITEBRRIRE) 613,900 489,503
Financial liabilities THRAE
Amortised cost B 2 AN 73,990 84,495

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
and other receivables, deposits, bank balances and
cash, trade and other payables, bank borrowings and
overdrafts. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments and the policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Credit risk

As at 30 June 2011, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of
the respective recognised financial assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk in relation to trade
receivables, the management of the Group will only
allow customers with good credit history to pay on
credit. In addition, the management reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account of
future discounted cash flows, to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the directors of the Company consider
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on trade receivables is concentrated on
a few distributors. Receivables from top five distributors
represented approximately 88% (2010: 87%) of trade
receivables in system sales and licensing at the end of
the reporting period. The management considers that
there are no significant credit risks due to the long and
good credit history of these debtors.

Annual Report 2011
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors
the utilisation of borrowings and the compliance of loan
covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities based
on the agreed repayment terms. The table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. The table includes
both interest and principal cash flows.

To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount of interest payment is estimated
based on the interest rate at the end of the reporting
period.

ERMTHE -2
PERREEEERNE — &

I

B E 2 E B

HARBDESRRERME  AEEERERERFRER
ReEREETEERA/TMIKFE  MEARKEE
Bz RILRERSRRBATRIZE - ERE TR
BB BT MR EE T HEB BRI

TRAVNAERE Z 2B A E IR E B R G2 Rk
BNFH - IRTBAEERFAREREEZSH
BERAMRESRIIT - TREFMNSRAENRS

7%
VI

BFEFRGTE 2 M B TIRE RS B Fe i 2 TR fh
SERBEIRA S RS o

On demand Total Carrying
Effective  or less than 7-12 Over undiscounted amount at
interest rates 6 months months 1 year cash flows 30 June 2011
RZB-—-%
RBAEER ABRRS ~A=t1H
ERAI=E SR6EA  7EZ12{8A k: N ik ZEHE
% HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TERT TERT TEx TER

2011 —E--F
Trade and other payables ~ JEFE 5 REMERR - 35,304 - - 35,304 35,304
Bank borrowings RIEE 13 33,201 - - 33,201 33,198
Overdrafts X 7.0 5,488 - - 5,488 5,488
73,993 - - 73,993 73,990

EREEARAR —E——FFH
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 5. @I H-#

Financial risk management objectives and BNEREEEERBE — 4
policies — continued

Liquidity risk — continued

P

mEBELEE — &

On demand Total Carrying

Effective or less than 7-12 Over  undiscounted amount at
interest rates 6 months months 1 year cash flows 30 June 2010
RZZ-%F

ERAERS KBRS  ~A=TH

ERM=  LReEA 7E128A 1EME it ZREE

% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL TEL TEL TEL TEL

2010 —E-ZF

Trade and other payables ~ JEfTE 5 R E 18R - 37,262 = = 37,262 37,262

Bank borrowings RIEE 15 16,129 2,118 30,200 48,477 47,233
53,391 2118 30,200 85,739 84,495

The amounts included above for variable interest rate F B R EA RN RSB ERE T 2 MR 4E - &
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are M IETTAE SR BE B TAMEY 2B AT
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates o

differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at

the end of the reporting period.

Interest rate risk FUE E Bz

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in AEBEMU AT ERITER  BIT848  FXLE
relation to variable-rate bank deposits, bank balances, TEEZHESRMNERER - z]x;% ERETRNE: I RVAE=E
overdrafts, and bank borrowings. The Group does not ZHELASHHIE SR FER R o A BIEEBEEEIEF
enter into any arrangement to hedge cash flow interest REMR  WEZEEREERE g,q: FBARNEREK o

rate risk. However, the management monitors interest

rate exposure and will consider hedging significant

interest rate risk should the need arises.

AEE 2B SRR R R E B R PR AR BIA RS
BZEEEE 2 HFEERRAR -

The Group cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of sterling base rates
arising from the Group’s Pound Sterling denominated

borrowings.
Sensitivity analysis HRE ST
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined A TEHRBRE D ITIRIBR RS B 2% 873

Kantone Holdings Limited

based on the exposure to interest rates for variable-
rate deposits, bank balances, overdrafts, and bank
borrowings at the end of the reporting period.

The analysis is prepared assuming the balances
outstanding at the end of the reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year. A 10 basis points (2010:
10 basis points) increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

Annual Report 2011
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

Interest rate risk — continued

Sensitivity analysis — continued

If interest rates had been 10 basis points (2010: 10
basis points) higher or lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s profit for the year
ended 30 June 2011 would increase or decrease
by approximately HK$210,000 (2010: increase or
decrease by HK$77,000).

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movement
in foreign currency exchange rate which will affect the
Group’s financial results and its cash flows. Certain
trade receivables and deposits and bank balances

of the Group and intra-group current accounts are
denominated in foreign currencies. The Group does not
engage in any foreign currency hedging instruments.
It is the Group’s policy to manage foreign exchange
risk through matching foreign currency income with
expense, and where exposure to foreign exchange is
anticipated, appropriate hedging instruments will be
used.

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities,
which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.

The carrying amounts of the group entities’ foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and monetary
liabilities (including intra-group current accounts) at the
reporting date are as follows:

ERMITHE-#
HEEAREEEERKE — 4

P

FIEmpE — &

fMF R EFek FA10BF(ZE—ZF : 108T)m
FTEHMABRARERETE  AEEHE_Z——F
NA =T HIEFE 2% S8 050/ 4> £9210,000 74
TL(=ZT—Z4F : 8 h0skiFi4 77,000/87T) °

SH B

SNERBIEF B AR EM B RE AR SR 2 INEE
REPRAMR - NEEE TRKE SRR  RITHFERK
RITAEBARERARBRZE RS QT AN E
B o REBEWES MAEAINEE P TR - AEE—F
HETEBEHIMNERA RSB EREELINERR - &
TEHEESINERRE - BRAAECHPTA -

ARRZRMBRABRAEAINEHEZEREERE
& SAREEmE I ERE

AEESERUIINEGEZEBEEREBEE(R
BEEAKEARIBZEHEFD) RS A ZET
(EVUNNE

2011 2010

—E——F —ZT-TF
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE =0 BE afE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET THET FHET FHET
Euro BT 7,553 459 1,886 771
Pound Sterling e 1,009 - 701 —
Macau Pataca B P 772 16 366 17
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Kantone Holdings Limited

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

Foreign currency risk — continued
Sensitivity analysis

The group entities are mainly exposed to foreign
currency risk in Euro.

The following table details the group entities’ sensitivity
to a 5% (2010: 5%) increase and decrease in Euro
against each group entity’s functional currency. 5%
(2010: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange
rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the year end for a 5%
(2010: 5%) change in foreign currency rates. A
positive number below indicates an increase in profit
where Euro strengthen 5% (2010: 5%) against each
group entity’s functional currency. For a 5% (2010:
5%) weakening of Euro against each group entity’s
functional currency, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the profit.

ERMTHE -2
HEEAREEEERKE — 4

Pl

SEmEE — &
AEBERTZAEZINERRKBEUT

TRAAGAEEEBYBT L EEEER 2R
W2EX AR THEIN(ZE—ZF  5%) 2 B
5% (ZF—FF : 5%) NRENMRATZEEA
SREINERRFAARANGRELE - ERAKRER
[E S HMNERE K S IR ] LR B RORT i - REDITEER
HEIASNEFHEN R BN EHIRE - WRINEERES)
5% (ZF—FF : 5%) HENFHRIME(EHFE
T EEXRARTESSEEEDEEETESS (=
T—ZF 5%) RNz LT o BT S EEER
MEEERIZES% (T —FF : 5%) * RIGEENIE
ARz MR E -

2011 2010

—g——% —T-%TF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FBT BT

Euro BT 355 56

Fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flows
analysis.

The directors consider the carrying amounts of financial
assets and liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair
values.

Annual Report 2011
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

(a)

(b)

Turnover

Turnover represents the net amounts received
and receivable for goods sold and services
provided by the Group to outside customers,
licensing fees and leasing income received and
receivable, and distributions/dividends received
and receivable from the Group’s investments in
e-commerce projects and strategic investments
during the year.

The turnover of the Group comprises the
following:

(@)

—E S
EEBRREFALAEEMIABTHEER &R
HRB 2 EW RS FIEFE - B R B
FIREERARESWRA  UEREASEEE TR
BHAZKRERKBHRE ZC W B KD
R/ BRE -

AEEZEXBERBA TSR

2011 2010

—E——F —E—TF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FBxT FiET

Sales of systems products HE RGEM 755,937 745,499
Rendering of services and R AR TS R B

software licensing AR 562,549 518,962

Leasing of systems products HERREM 22,520 22,247

Guaranteed distribution income ERDHBA = 2,908

1,341,006 1,289,616

Segment information

The operating segments have been identified

on the basis of internal management reports
prepared in accordance with accounting policies
conforming to HKFRSs, that are regularly
reviewed by the directors of the Company, for
the purpose of allocating resources to segments
and assessing their performance.

Three reportable segments under HKFRS 8
Operating Segments are identified as follows:

includes income from
sales of systems
products, software
licensing and
customisation, and
provision of related
services

includes income from

e Systems sales —
and licensing

e Leasing of —

systems leasing of systems
products products

e  Strategic — includes income from
investments investments

(b)

DEEHR

REDBIREBENABEM B RS LR ZES
BERMGIE 2 ARPE BB E R XARAR
AESEHEHUSRERT SO RLFHE
E

BREEEVBREENFR [LLEHR] =
B HREDBEDMT

e EBHER — BEHEERREM-
FratiE WA )
A] BLEA R AR R
RS 2 YA
e HERLEM — BREHEERNESR
ZWA
o EERMERE — BSEREZWA
EEEEARAA 2§
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION — continued

(b) Segment information — continued
The accounting policies of the reportable
segments are the same as the Group’s

accounting policies desc

ribed in note 3.

Segment results represent the profit (loss) before
taxation of each segment, excluding interest
income, finance costs, unallocated income and
expenses such as central administration costs
and directors’ salaries. This is the measure

reported to the directors

of the Company, the

chief operating decision maker, for the purpose
of resource allocation and assessment of

segment performance.

Information regarding the above segments is

reported below:

EXERIBEEN - #

(b)

DEEN — &

ARS8 2 &t BOR R i S PT It 2 AR
SETERFAAR - DA S D BRI
BLATE A (BR) - TRIEMNSMEA - MK
A BRARDEMRAER S (M0 RITBA A R E
EHMWE) - WRRERDE R BRRFEM
MARFES — TBLEREE — ®EZT
2 o

ERLADBRERZHMT

Systems Leasing
sales and of systems Strategic

licensing products investments Consolidated

RIHE HE

RiETTE AEER RRMRE RE

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000

TET TET FTET TET
Year ended 30 June 2011 HE-Z——F
ARB=ZTHLEE
TURNOVER BEE
External and total revenue  $9MEE RAAIA 1,318,486 22,520 - 1,341,006
RESULTS -
Segment result DEEE 91,785 (268) - 91,517
Interest income FEMA 4,629
Finance costs BATE AR (586)
Unallocated expenses, net &7 Bcbl s 58 (11,373)
Profit before taxation R T8 AT ) 84,187
Year ended 30 June 2010 EE-Z %
NAZTRLEEE

Turnover [+
External and total revenue  $19p %5 RAAILA 1,264,461 22,247 2,908 1,289,616
RESULTS £
Segment result DIRES 96,101 864 1,404 98,369
Interest income FLEMA 4,710
Finance costs B RS AR AN (470)
Unallocated expenses, net K/ Fefl s %58 (22,379
Profit before taxation B BT A 80,230
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TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 6. ZXBNOEER &
INFORMATION — continued
(b) Segment information — continued b) 2EER —F
Systems Leasing
sales and of systems Strategic
licensing products investments Consolidated
AGRHE HE
RAsErRE ARER REMRE =E
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FExT FTHEx FExT
Year ended 30 June 2011 HE-_Z——f
AA=ZTHLEEE
Amounts included in the ARETEn
measure of segment profit S EE 2
or loss: B
Depreciation and amortisation 478 J # 5% 446,606 944 - 447,550
Impairment losses recognised 1% K TR B
for deposits and prepaid AR Z
development costs HIERE 65,720 = = 65,720
Gain on disposal of HER &
available-for-sales REZ
investments Wax - - (31) (31)
Gain on disposal of property, HEME BEX
plant and equipment Bz e (38) = = (38)
Year ended 30 June 2010 BE-T—ZF
ANAZtHHLEEE
Amounts included in the ARETEnE
measure of segment profit B EE 2
or loss: S8
Depreciation and amortisation 47 [ # ¢4 380,541 737 — 381,278
Impairment losses recognised  #i% & K B3
for deposits and prepaid B AR
development costs REEE 85,800 - - 85,800
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BER
plant and equipment REZEE 15 = = 15

No assets and liabilities are included in the
measure of segment reporting as they are
not regularly reviewed by the directors of the

Company.

HRARRIEERAHREERAEEHEHRE
B - BORAREMARS BRENE -

EREEARAR

S S i
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For the Year Ended 30 June 2011 BE=-ZT——F A A=1+HIFE

6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION — continued

(c) Geographical information
The following table provides an analysis of the
Group’s revenue and non-current assets by
location of customers and by location of assets

EXERIBEEN - #

) HEER
AEBEDRREEREEMEHE D Z WA K
IERBEESNHINATE :

respectively:
Revenue Non-current assets
O FRBEE
Year ended 30 June As at 30 June
BEAA=TRILEE RARA=+H
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E2—-—-F —T-TF —E——F —T-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THER FHT THER FHT
People’s Republic of China hEARERE
(the “PRC"), including ([HE])  BEES
Hong Kong and Macau KB 886,369 832,124 2,555,233 2,411,988
Europe (mainly United Kingdom — BUM (=& ARE K&
and Germany) =E) 354,011 363,959 43,955 34,854
Others Hh 100,626 93,533 2,454 2,448
1,341,006 1,289,616 2,601,642 2,449,290
7. OTHER INCOME HAug A

Included in other income is interest income of
HK$4,629,000 (2010: HK$4,710,000).

H b A BIEF) B U A 4,629,000/ T (—ZE—ZT4F :
4,710,000 7T) °

8. FINANCE COSTS B AR
2011 2010
—E——fF —E—TF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FBxT FAET
Interest on bank and other borrowings ARRAFRNBHEEZ

and overdrafts wholly repayable BITREMEERES

within five years 2R B 586 470

Kantone Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011



PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 9. KRB ADZER
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Profit before taxation has been arrived at BRERIRFE
after charging: IR -
Directors’ remuneration = 940 3,431
Staff costs B TR AR 89,425 92,024
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RN R ET B4R
other than directors (BEE/HRIN 7,446 7,806
Total staff costs B T AN 4258 97,811 103,261
Amortisation on: AR I8 2 #8H -
Development costs for systems and R R 2 B
networks, included in cost of sales (GEASHERKRARA) 437,832 371,310
Intangible assets, included in general and EREEGEA—RK
administrative expenses T EA) 590 2,360
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment, #1% - FE K &
included in general and administrative ZHEGrA—RM K
expenses TR HA) 9,128 7,608
Total depreciation and amortisation EREEES 447,550 381,278
Auditor’s remuneration 1Z RN B & 2,155 2,168
Cost of inventories recognised as expense BERAEI L ZEFERAR 609,767 591,935
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BE K&
equipment 2 18 = 15
Minimum lease payments paid under EREEHEE N2 REHEE
operating leases in respect of: REERIE
Rented premises HEWME 2,926 2,901
Motor vehicles b2 3,991 4,227
and after crediting: REFHA :
Net foreign exchange gain i 5 a5 921 849
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BE K&
equipment 2 Wz 38 —
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEAHEERE
investments ZUzs 31 —
EREEBRAR —E——FFH]
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BE-Z——FA=1THLFE

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION — contiuved 9., BRBLBIRF — 2
Information regarding directors’ and employees’ EREEHEEME 2B -
emoluments:
Directors ==
Year ended 30 June 2011 BE-ZE——FANA=1HLEE
Performance  Retirement
Salaries related benefit Total
and other incentive scheme directors’
Fees benefits payments contributions emoluments
HeR BRIERE RIEEA E=He
ik HitERl BHzESE T EIfERR “m
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
THRT TET TET THT TET
(Note)
(GBS
Executive directors HITES
Dr. Paul Kan Man Lok AV EE+ - 57 - 3 60
Mr. Lai Yat Kwong RAKEAE - 57 - 3 60
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. Leo Kan Kin Leung BREREE 5 20 - - 25
Mr. Frank Bleackley Frank Bleackley 52 4 50 50 - - 100
Prof. Julia Tsuei Jo ERHE 50 50 - - 100
Ms. Miranda Ho Mo Han GEYiE e 50 50 - - 100
Mr. Paul Michael James Kirby Paul Michael James Kirby %t4 50 425 - - 475
Ms. Shirley Ha Suk Ling Bt 5 15 - - 20
210 724 - 6 940
Year ended 30 June 2010 HE-_Z-—ZTFA=+AHLEE
Performance Retirement
Salaries related benefit Total
and other incentive scheme directors’
Fees benefits payments  contributions  emoluments
Hek RIERR RINER EEYk
e HEirEh  BReRe HE 50 ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TR TR THT THT
(Note)
(Brs)
Executive directors HITES
Dr. Paul Kan Man Lok EXEEL - 57 2,500 3 2,560
Mr. Lai Yat Kwong RENESE - 57 - 3 60
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. Leo Kan Kin Leung BERELE 5 20 = = 25
Mr. Frank Bleackley Frank Bleackley 5t & 50 50 - - 100
Prof. Julia Tsuei Jo ERHE 50 50 - - 100
Ms. Miranda Ho Mo Han [EES e 50 50 - - 100
Mr. Paul Michael James Kirby Paul Michael James Kirby 5t 4 50 416 = — 466
Ms. Shirley Ha Suk Ling Bt 5 15 = = 20
210 715 2,500 6 3,431

Note: The performance related incentive payment is
discretionary as may be decided by the board of
directors provided that the total amount of bonus
payable to all members of the board of directors
for such year shall not exceed eight percent of the
consolidated profit after taxation of the Group.

Kantone Holdings Limited
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o

10.

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION — contived 9. BRBLBIRF — 2
Information regarding directors’ and employees’ EREEHEEME 2B — &
emoluments: — continued
Employees =]
The five highest paid individuals of the Group did not AREBREZZEEFATERTESFEEM(ZZE—F
include any directors of the Company (2010: one). F:—R)ARAER - ZBEENEHE_ZT—ZTF
Details of the emoluments of that director for the year NA=TBHLEEZMEeFEEHEN L - "EET
ended 30 June 2010 are set out above. The aggregate Z(—E—ZEF B ReHF AT (WIERATZE
emoluments of the five (2010: four) highest paid E)MeEmEINT
employees of the Group, not being directors of the
Company, are as follows:
2011 2010
-7 -z
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FET
Salaries and other benefits e REMEF] 6,027 5,038
Performance related incentive payments RITVERBEW 2 184 432 62
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RN FET B4R 535 581
6,994 5,681
Emoluments of these employees were within the HEREEZMEN T T5I&EE :
following bands:
Number of employee(s)
EBEAH
2011 2010
—B——F —T-TF
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T 1,500,000 # 7T 3 3
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 77T 2,000,000 /& 7T 2 1
TAXATION (CREDIT) CHARGE 10. BIE(ER)ZH
2011 2010
—g——-%  -T-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
The (credit) charge comprises: HIEORR) BB :
Deferred taxation (note 26) EEFLIE (FI5E26) (133) 121
BEBEEBEERAHE —E——FFR
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e MR EMNEE

For the Year Ended 30 June 2011

10.

Kantone Holdings Limited

TAXATION (CREDIT) CHARGE — continued

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2010:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits derived
from Hong Kong. No provision for taxation has been
made as the Group’s income neither arises in, nor is
derived from Hong Kong. Taxation in other jurisdictions
is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective
jurisdictions.

The low effective tax rate is attributable to the fact that
a substantial portion of the Group’s profit neither arises
in, nor is derived from, Hong Kong and is accordingly
not subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax and such profit
is either exempt from or not subject to taxation in any
other jurisdictions.

The tax (credit) charge for the year can be reconciled
to the profit before taxation per the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as follows:

BE-Z——FA=1THLFE

10.

B (ER)XH -2

FENEBIIARE B 2 AT ERTUE 2 16.6%
(ZF—FF :16.5%) R E - ARNARKEZIK
ABEIERE BRI - TMIERAER - R AREHBIR
B o B RDEMER 2 HIRTHIRE R FhAM R % B 5K
RzBEAE -

EBRRERRFEZRERASBARD @ FRE N EE
BRI MIERBEE - MBASRBEENEH - Mt
SORMMNE M B)EM & IR 2 B AR IR -

REFZHIAGER) HEGA 2EWER ZBRA
AR

2011 2010

—E——F —T—TF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET T

Profit before taxation BT A& A 84,187 80,230
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5%  Z &S MG K 16.5% 1 E 2

(2010: 16.5%) ME(ZZ—TF : 16.5%) 13,891 13,238
Tax effect of profit exempted or not subject to 7 Bl 7] 3% i [ JE 24 % 470 =k

taxation in other jurisdictions BAERB RN 2 RIS L (26,694) (15,606)
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BAGRBEE AR WA Z

purposes k8- (2,759) (3,140)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for AR B IRz 2

tax purposes k- 15,104 4,510

Utilisation of tax loss previously not recognised i i@ 1F kiR~ B 7% 58 (351) —

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERZBHEEBZHEEE 676 1,119

Taxation (credit) charge for the year REEZHER) I (133) 121

Annual Report 2011



11.

12.

DIVIDENDS 11. RE
2011 2010
—E——% —T-T%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
2011 final dividend proposed in scrip form AR B IR EHER
equivalent to HKO0.20 cents BRRO20E I (ZF—F4F :
(2010: HK0.20 cents) per share, 0208() 2 = F——F &
with a cash option PURAKEIRL S - IR ER S 14,985 10,468
2011 interim dividend paid in scrip form BB A R ERER
equivalent to HK0.20 cents BRRO20BI (ZT—FF -
(2010: HKO0.20 cents) per share, 0208 2 =T ——FF
with a cash option REIRE - TIEER S 10,608 10,357
25,593 20,825

The proposed final dividend for 2011 is calculated
on the basis of 7,492,522,578 shares (2010:
5,234,207,576 shares) in issue on 30 June 2011.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based
on the profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$84,025,000 (2010: HK$82,955,000)
and on the weighted average number of shares of
5,834,004,000 shares (2010: 5,285,975,000 shares) in
issue. The weighted average number of shares for the
purpose of calculating the basic earnings per share for
the years ended 30 June 2011 and 2010 have been
adjusted for the rights issue of the Company completed
in April 2011 on the basis of two rights shares for every
five existing issued shares.

No diluted earnings per share is presented for the
years ended 30 June 2011 and 2010 as there were no
potential ordinary shares in issue during the years.

12.

—E——FEBRRRBEREDNE =T ——FA
=+ B2z B BTN 7,492,522 578k (— T —Z 4 :
5,234,207 576 f%) 5+ -

BRER

BREAEFNTDIBEREERNQREE ARG
84,025,0008 7T (—ZZ—=F 4 : 82,955,000/ 7T) K&
1T 2 INEF R S E 5,834,004,000 % (=T —=
F : 52859750005t H - HEHE_T——FR
—E-TFERNAZTALFEZERERRFN Z NE
FHRNBEEEHRARATNR -E——FNW A TR IR
BHERRBEEITRMHEEMARERRD 2 HARE
BlEL A -

BN FAL AT AR AR E8E—%——
FRIB-Z2FRA=THILFERNLRZTIEEHE
ZAN -

S
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR EMNEE

For the Year Ended 30 June 2011

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. M1¥ - KERXE
Plant and
machinery and
Land and telecommunications
buildings networks Total
BE - HER
T REF EEMA%K &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
COST RAE
At 1 July 2009 RZZEZNFEHA—H 19,614 307,738 327,352
Currency realignment PE 5 A% (1,103) (24,180) (25,283)
Additions RE = 14,749 14,749
Disposals S = (709) (709)
At 30 June 2010 RZZE—ZFA=T+H 18,511 297,598 316,109
Currency realignment PE B 1,661 21,487 23,148
Additions RE — 14,918 14,918
Disposals HE = (627) (627)
At 30 June 2011 R=-B——FXA=1+H 20,172 333,376 353,548
DEPRECIATION AND EKRE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 July 2009 RZZEZTNFEA—H 5,133 287,384 292,517
Currency realignment PE 5, A% 417) (22,389) (22,806)
Provided for the year FREE 208 7,400 7,608
Eliminated on disposals & R AR — (681) (681)
At 30 June 2010 RZE—ZFFA=1+H 4,924 271,714 276,638
Currency realignment bE 5, A% 370 19,424 19,794
Provided for the year FREAE 252 8,876 9,128
Eliminated on disposals H & RE RS — (568) (568)
At 30 June 2011 HR-—Z——FXA=+H 5,546 299,446 304,992
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 30 June 2011 HR=-ZB——FxA=1+H 14,626 33,930 48,556
At 30 June 2010 RZE—ZFFA=1+H 13,587 25,884 39,471

Kantone Holdings Limited
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13.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

— continued

13. Y% - BMERRE —#

2011 2010
= —TTHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBxT FAET
The carrying values of the Group’s property  ZN$2 B 7 W) ¥ 25 BRE A
interests comprise: BIE -
Freehold properties held outside REBAIMRIFEKAEEZ
Hong Kong LES 14,396 13,368
Properties held outside Hong Kong under REBAIMEEFE RBARN 2
long leases (Note) 2 (FT5E) 230 219
14,626 13,5687

Note: Owner-occupied leasehold land is included in property,

plant and equipment as the allocations between the
land and buildings elements cannot be made reliably.

At 30 June 2011, certain land and buildings of the
Group with a carrying value of HK$8,455,000 (2010:
HK$7,933,000) were pledged to a bank as security for
banking facilities granted to the Group.

The Group leases equipment to customers on
operating lease terms. The carrying value of such
equipment, which is included in plant and machinery
and telecommunications networks, is as follows:

W R TR TR S T TEBES  HAAMAZ
RO AL BB RRME -

RZZT——FNA=1H  A5£ERAEE 48,455,000
BT (T —F4 ¢ 7,933,000 70) 2 & T i M 1E
FEEBFIRT  (EAREERSRITRE ZER -

AEERELEHEFRNBERBTES - AARBZ
REED S ARE fE#s REEHEKA - BHHIW
™

2011 2010

=F——F =

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FBxT F&T

Customer equipment at cost BEHRME IR AE 80,007 74,419
Less: Accumulated depreciation o BEHITE (78,923) (73,402)
Carrying value BREE 1,084 1,017

—E——FEH
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14.

Kantone Holdings Limited

HE-F—FAASTALFE

DEVELOPMENT COSTS FOR SYSTEMS 14. ZE N HBK 2R KR
AND NETWORKS
2011 2010
—E——F —T-FF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F&T T
COST B ANME
At beginning of the year fz=)| 2,942,001 2,392,154
Currency realignment HEE 34, 5 2 9 25
Transferred from deposits and prepaid BaiRe RIEA
development costs B B B AN 190,554 549,822
At end of the year FiE 3,132,564 2,942,001
AMORTISATION 8
At beginning of the year F4 1,669,431 1,298,121
Provided for the year FANEE 437,832 371,310
At end of the year ik 2,107,263 1,669,431
CARRYING VALUE BREE
At end of the year Fik 1,025,301 1,272,570

Development costs for systems and networks include
all direct costs incurred in setting up and development
of systems and networks. The Group’s development
costs for systems and networks (other than those
that are not yet implemented for intended use) are
amortised over the estimated economic useful lives of
a maximum of five years.

During the year, the management conducted a review
of the Group’s development costs for systems and
networks in light of the current market condition. The
value in use was determined based on the estimated
future cash flows discounted at a rate of 7% (2010:
8%) per annum. No impairment was recognised after
management’s assessment on individual systems and
networks for both years.

Annual Report 2011

R R g 2 MBKA BRI MAZ AR RER
PIEBERAA « NEE 2 Z5 MR 2 BB R AR
sHAE A F R (RZ AF) T IA#EH (1 K 7 (F#EE
BERRIN) o

FR EEEERENTAEAEEZ ZRRBEEZ
RBERAETEN - EREDREBEMHRARASRER
FRE7% (ZT—FF : 8%)FREET - EXEEY
% (B E A2 B Bl R e e B AR A 1T AT il 1% S SR AR
R



15.

GOODWILL 15. B8
Goodwill acquired in a business combination is LIRAETUNEE 2 g B TR RER SR E T3 B IR B
allocated, at acquisition, to the following cash iz ([BIRWEBAL]) -
generating unit (“CGU"):
2011 & 2010
—EB——FR
—E-8F
HK$’000
THET
Provision of e-lottery services (included in the EHEFRERB (B ARRHEER
systems sales and licensing segment) BN ) 36,795

For each of the years ended 30 June 2011 and 2010,
management of the Group determines that there was
no impairment of its CGU containing goodwill.

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined
from value in use calculations. The key assumptions
for the value in use calculations are those regarding
the discount rate, growth rate and expected changes
to selling prices and direct costs during the period.
Management estimates discount rate using pre-tax
rate that reflect current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU.

The growth rate is based on industry growth forecasts.

Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based
on past practices and expectations of future changes
in the market.

During the year, the Group performed impairment
review for goodwill based on cash flow forecasts
derived from the most recent financial budgets and
projected for the next four (2010: four) years based
on remaining life of respective license and discounted
at a rate of 7% (2010: 10%) per annum which
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the CGU. The
growth rate is based on industry growth forecasts.
Since the recoverable amount of CGU exceeded the
carrying amount, no impairment loss was considered
necessary.

ﬁi:::——i)i* E—ZERNA=THIERFE
AEBERERERTE /H\E{ BERBZEREMILE

BE -

BB AN ESEAEREESNE R EEE -
EREBEAEEZIZRRIRPAZERE R
RPREBRERKRA2ERES EEEEATR
BRE RIS AR 2 R e B EREREN 2 FERR
ZBRATM R SR RERBE - EREUTRIERT
ARERE - EEREERKRAZEE THBEED KA
Hz RRMISE B REAE -

FR - AEERRRBRBAICREBEE ST M
BIEE R AT RS ERMEE 2 R RMNE (=
T—TF @fﬁ)iﬁé//m)g EH R EEITRESR

WERTET%(ZE—FF : 10%) 2 W E AR
?E??J‘Tm%ﬁﬁZﬁﬁE%@&@ﬁﬁﬁﬁZ%iﬂl‘A o i
RETIAITERRIBAAELE - AR BIREN 2 ATk
EleERRNEREE  ARERADAELRERIS

S
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BE-Z——FA=1THLFE

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. ML EE
Licence
rights
45T RE
HK$'000
FHT
COST KAME
Balance at 1 July 2009, RZZETZNFLA—AH -
30 June 2010 and —ZT-ZTFA=1tHK
30 June 2011 ZE——FRNA=TRHZEH 11,800
AMORTISATION i3]
Balance at 1 July 2009 RZZETNFLA—B2&E# 8,850
Charge for the year N5 2,360
Balance at 30 June 2010 RZZE—TFNA=THZER 11,210
Charge for the year F N 590
Balance at 30 June 2011 RZE——FNA=TBZ2E&EH 11,800
CARRYING VALUE BREE
At 30 June 2011 R=—ZB——FXA=+H =
At 30 June 2010 RZZE—ZFFA=+H 590
The licence rights for provision of e-lottery services RBAEFE  ARRIEWRBREEE T ey vk sk

were acquired as part of a business combination in
previous years. The licence rights have finite useful
lives and are amortised on a straight-line basis over
the period of the right granted or 5 years, whichever is

shorter.

Kantone Holdings Limited
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17.

18.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 17.

AHEERE

2011 2010
=
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHT

Unlisted equity securities, at cost, in respect ~ BtAEFRIEIER ~ ik
of interest in e-commerce projects B HE 2 I ETIRAFE S - 28,094
Impairment loss recognised BEHERZREEE = (28,094)

The unlisted equity investments represent investments
in unlisted equity securities issued by private entities
incorporated outside Hong Kong. They are measured
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses at
the end of the reporting period because the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that
the management is of the opinion that their fair values
cannot be measured reliably.

During the year, the Group disposed of the fully
impaired unlisted investments with carrying amount
of nil balance (2010: HK$85,122,000) to independent
third parties for the consideration amount of
HK$31,000 (2010: HK$85,122,000). Hence, gain of
HK$31,000 (2010: nil) was recognised on disposal of
these investments.

DEPOSITS AND PREPAID 18.

DEVELOPMENT COSTS

During the year, the management conducted a review
of the Group’s deposits and prepaid development
costs in light of the delayed commencement of

certain Technology Projects and determined that
certain deposits and prepaid development costs were
impaired based on the estimated recoverable amounts
with reference to their values in use. The values in

use were determined based on the estimated future
cash flows discounted at a rate of 7% (2010: 8%)

per annum. Based on the value in use estimation,
management had determined an impairment losses of
HK$65,720,000 (2010: nil) to be recognised during the
year.

In prior year, the management had determined that
no future benefit would be generated for certain
specific projects. Accordingly, impairment loss of
HK$85,800,000 (2011: nil) of the related deposits and
prepaid development costs were fully impaired.

FEMRAIRE RN BB AN R FMA L2 FAE
E;'fﬁﬁ?“ TZIFLETRABHZIRE - RFRENTHE
HTe s RHR R A ERE R 2R ERB R 2 m:mta
E/\‘/:.\IE NFEEGMEGSEEX  EEERRAREAE
wEFBERFEE -

FR AREBIARESLEES,0008T(ZE—Z4F
85,122,000/87C) * MBYE = HERMEAZT (=
T —Z4F 85,122,000/ 7T) © RE L2 SURE R
HBZIELEMRE - At - EFRHEZSHRE-RRES
31,0008 (ZT—FF : ) °

BERANBRBEAR

FR-EEERELE TRNEECEREMYANER
Zime RIBNMABKAANEITER  WRSERF 2
BEEMMGTZAIKRESE  REAS TIRS KA
FBKANEITRE - FABEDREERRKRESR
REFRTY (- —T4F : 8%) BIRMMET o BIFE
REEZEE EEERANERNERZBEEES
65,720,000/ T (Z 2 —Z4F : M) o

5 EEER/ETHERBARTEELMES -
BRI S M TS B A A 2 R (B &5 18 85,800,000 78
TEBRBRE(ZZ——F : ) -

S
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B IR B RE

For the Year Ended 30 June 2011 BE=-T——F X A=1+HIFE

19. INVENTORIES 19. FE
2011 2010
—E——F —T—TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Raw materials Bkt 16,617 13,862
Work in progress ERSH 2,151 2,965
Finished goods SR R 6,791 7,948
25,559 24,775
20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. EWE S REMERR

2011 2010
—E——F —ET—TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Trade receivables FEUE 5 BRI 339,128 331,412
Advance to suppliers TE R FIE 93,332 94,321
Others HAh 26,296 31,561
458,756 457,294
The Group maintains a well-defined credit policy AEBREESEFPETHBZEERR - REBEES
regarding its trade customers depending on their credit ZIEA RERERZMEE  TRASEETHBERM
worthiness, nature of services and products, industry BTEFNTI0BEE180H ZEEH - TBAEERR
practice and condition of the market with credit period TR [ B MCEL A BR SR SR AR - A B R ATIRE - IR

ranging from 30 days to 180 days. The advance to FIRHEHTAE T ZEARNLE -

suppliers and other receivables are unsecured, non-
interest bearing and refundable, which are expected to
be realised in the next twelve months from the end of
the reporting period.
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20.

21.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES —

continued

The aged analysis of trade receivables presented
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting
period is as follows:

20

BWE S REMERR -2

EWE ZRFARERTHEFRIZER BB ZRE D
25T

2011 2010

—Z2——F —T-TF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

0 — 60 days 0—60H 158,826 149,575
61 — 90 days 61 —90H 117,979 111,772
91 — 180 days 91 —180H 62,317 70,065
> 180 days > 180 H 6 =
339,128 331,412

Before accepting any new customer, the Group’s
finance and sales management team would assess

the potential customer’s credit quality and define

credit limits for the customers. Limits attributable to
customers are reviewed regularly with reference to
past settlement history. The Group’s finance and sales
management team considers trade receivables that are
neither past due nor impaired to be of a good credit
quality as continuous repayments have been received.

DEPOSITS, BANK BALANCES AND
CASH/OVERDRAFTS

The deposits, bank balances and cash comprises
short-term deposits with maturity of three months or
less and cash held by the Group. The deposits and
bank balances carry interest at an average rate of 0.5%
(2010: 0.3%) per annum.

Certain bank balances and cash of HK$5,657,000
(2010: HK$7,794,000) were denominated in Renminbi
(“RMB”), which is not freely convertible currency in
the international market. The exchange rate of RMB

is determined by the Government of the PRC and the
remittance of these funds out of the PRC is subject to
exchange restrictions imposed by the Government of
the PRC.

Overdrafts

The overdrafts are from financial institutions and carry
variable interest at an average rate of 7% per annum
(2010: nil).

21.

REMEEHELA - AEE 2P RIEEEEBEK
BHEEERPZEREER  URAERFPZEE®R -
BTEFPZEERE2E A AERSTEMETE
B - ANEE 2 B M HE B R B A KRBT AR
BEzRKESEFAFEERMABRIFEEESR

TR ROEBRRRES EX

T RITERLRREEIHAR=FEARURNZ
RMERRAEERFEZEE - FRRBITERIZT
BEMEKOSE(ZF—FF : 0.3FE):TE o

B E5,657,0008 L (ZF—F4F : 7,794,000/87T) Z
HOBRITEBRRBETIUARE(TAREDEE
AREWIERBEBETSEERLR 8 - ARBEER
THRFPERGETE  APRENZEESAITFTRK
&2 INEE HIFTRR

Ex
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22.

23.

Kantone Holdings Limited

BE-Z——FA=1THLFE

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 22.

As at 30 June 2011, the balance of trade and other
payables included trade payables of HK$15,881,000
(2010: HK$12,908,000). The aged analysis of trade
payables presented based on the invoice date at the
end of the reporting period is as follows:

PR & 5 K H L fR K

REZ——FRA=1THB ENESMEMERZE
#6235 15,881,0008 ;0 (=T — T 4 : 12,908,0007%8
T0) 2N E BB - BN E B IRAN RS B e i
RBEZAHZREDIT2FMT

2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THET
0 — 60 days 0—60H 11,798 11,122
61 — 90 days 61 — 90 H 522 547
91 — 180 days 91 — 180 H 1,976 1,239
> 180 days >180H 1,585 —
15,881 12,908
The credit period for purchases of goods ranged from BEERZEEBRNTI0HEAH °
30 days to 60 days.
Other payables mainly represent receipt in advance FENHMERREE ATBNNIBRTEIZEA -
and accruals.
WARRANTY PROVISION 23, IRERE
2011 2010
—g——-%  -T-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH T
At 1 July ®tHA—H 1,142 1,513
Currency realignment RS 197 (154)
Provided during the year FNEE 1,367 1,124
Utilised during the year FREFHH (1,261) (1,341)
At 30 June RANA=1H 1,445 1,142

The warranty provision represents the management’s
best estimate of the Group’s liability under 12-month
warranties granted on manufactured products, based
on prior experience and industry average for defective
products.
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24. BANK BORROWINGS 24, $RTEE

2011 2010
—E——fF —T-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT

Bank borrowings comprise the following: IRITIEERIE

Bank loans RITER

Secured (Note) B (I5E) 31,198 33,233
Unsecured A4 2,000 14,000
33,198 47,233

Note: These bank loans were secured by the Group’s land Mz« ZFRITEFAREEREE 58,455,000 8T (=&
and buildings with carrying value of HK$8,455,000 —Z4F : 7,033,000/ 7T) Z i RAEF IR o
(2010: HK$7,933,000).

2011 2010
—E——fF —E—TF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET T

Carrying amount repayable: BEEREME :

On demand or within one year (Note) mEAs—F A (M) 33,198 18,183

More than one year, but not exceeding ZHR—F  BNEG

two years N - 4,183

More than two years, but not exceeding ZRME - BB

three years =% - 24,867
33,198 47,233

Less: Amounts due within one year shown B —FREERN B 5
under current liabilities mBBE (33,198) (18,183)

Amounts due after one year —FRINB S — 29,050

The above bank loans bear variable interest ranging LR ITERENT125BEE1.95B(ZF—FF :

from 1.25% to 1.95% (2010: 1.25% to 2.09%) per 125 B % 2.098) 2 FBFHEGE o

annum.

Note: As at 30 June 2011, bank loans repayable on Mzt : RZTE——FAA=TH  AREANIN-—FAEE
demand or within one year included bank loans of ZIRTERBIERBAEE M B QR FERRTT
HK$26,705,000 which had become repayable on BRE R EIR B AE B A 8026,705,000 B T 2 RITE
demand in accordance with the terms of the bank N ZESHEESEAREBAR -

facilities of a subsidiary of the Group. These amounts
had been classified as current liabilities.

EEEEARAA —E——FFH 7
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25.

Kantone Holdings Limited

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Defined contribution scheme

Certain subsidiaries of the Company participate in

a retirement benefit scheme covering a portion of
their employees. The assets of the scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of independent trustees.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions charged
to the profit or loss represent contributions payable to
the funds by the Group at rates specified in the rules of
the scheme. Where there are employees who leave the
scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions, the
contribution payable by the Group is reduced by the
amount of forfeited contributions.

Commencing from December 2000, the Group enrolled
all eligible employees in Hong Kong into a mandatory
provident fund (the “MPF”) scheme. The retirement
benefit cost of the MPF scheme charged to the profit
or loss represents contributions to the MPF scheme

by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the MPF
scheme.

During the year, retirement benefit scheme
contributions paid for the above scheme, amounted to
HK$359,000 (2010: HK$309,000).

Defined benefit scheme

Certain subsidiaries of the Company operate a self-
administered and funded pension scheme. The scheme
provides defined pension benefits related to the final
salary of the members at retirement and their length of
service. The scheme is closed to new members.

The contributions which are determined by a qualified
actuary on the basis of triennial valuations using the
projected unit credit method are charged to the profit
or loss. Under the scheme, the employees are entitled
to a pension between 1.67% and 2.50% of final salary
for each year of pensionable service at an age of 65.
No other post-retirement benefits are provided. The
most recent actuarial valuations of scheme assets and
the present value of the defined benefit obligations
were carried out at 31 December 2008 by Ms. Alison
Bostock ("Ms. Bostock"), Fellow of the Institute of
Actuaries, and were updated to 30 June 2011 by Ms.
Bostock for the accounting reporting purpose. The
assumptions which have the most significant effect on
the results of the valuation are those relating to the rate
of return on investments and the rates of increase in
salaries, pensions and share dividends.

Annual Report 2011
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25.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES —

continued

Defined benefit scheme — continued
The main actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

RIKEFNETE -2

EHEEAE — &
FRTEREBRRDT -

At At

30 June 2011 30 June 2010

R=T——F RIZZT-TF

ANA=1+H NA=1H

Discount rate AR3R = 5.50% 5.40%
Expected return on scheme assets TR ER 2 5T 81 & E B R 7.00% 6.90%
Expected rate of salary increase TEEZ FrEFHiE 3.70% 3.40%
Future pension increases KRR ZBKRE TR 3.70% 3.40%

The actuarial valuation updated to 30 June 2011 by Ms.
Bostock showed that the market value of the scheme
assets was HK$273,552,000 (2010: HK$223,371,000)
and that the actuarial value of these assets represented
77% (2010: 68%) of the benefits that had accrued to
members. A shortfall of HK$10,407,000 (2011: nil)

in 2010, which was the excess of net unrecognised
actuarial losses over the greater of 10% of the fair value
of scheme assets and 10% of the present value of
funded obligations, is to be cleared over the estimated
remaining service period of current membership of 10
years.

Amounts recognised in profit or loss in respect of the
defined benefit pension scheme are as follows:

B Bostock T+ B E—_E——FEXA=1THZHE
HEERT  FrEEECTER273,552,0008 7T (=
T—T4F : 223,371,000/870)  MxSEEZIEEE
BEAL2EEBEESENZTT%(ZE—FF : 68%) °
R-B—FFA810,407,0008 T (ZF——4 : &)
ZERE  BIARBE SR FEa N EEEQATE
BEZ10%HESEERBEZ10% (ARG ELAE) 2
HEE - RELEE 8 2 TEET RIS RIS FH (A 10 F(EET)
RBIE °

SLERRIR AR ARG BN RSP R 2 2R T -

2011 2010

—E——fF —T—TF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET T

Current service cost IRTTARFE R AN 3,658 3,161
Interest on obligation EIEZ T E 18,523 18,646
Expected return on scheme assets sTEIEE ZBH[O R (16,200) (14,304)
Net actuarial loss BEEEFE 1,112 =
7,093 7,503

The charge for the year has been included in cost of
sales.

AEEXHEFAHERA
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25. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES —

continued

Defined benefit scheme — continued

The amount included in the consolidated statement of
financial position arising from the Group’s obligations
in respect of its defined benefit pension scheme is as
follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B IR B RE

For the Year Ended 30 June 2011 BE=-ZT——F A A=1+HIFE

RIRBERETE -2

ERBAEE — &
AAKEZ EEENERAEREMEL 2 S EDR
AGFEPBRREK - ST

2011 2010

—E——F —T—TF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FExT FHT

Fair value of scheme assets FEIEEZ AFER 273,552 223,371
Present value of funded obligations BoEEZRE (354,616) (328,404)
Net unrecognised actuarial loss RERZIEEEBFRE 19,727 43,247
(61,337) (61,786)

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit
obligation are as follows:

ERBANAEZREZSHNT

2011 2010

—E——F —E—TF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FERT FHT

At beginning of the year F1) 328,404 303,635
Currency realignment bE A% 24,297 (28,315)

Service cost R AKX 3,658 3,161
Interest cost B 18,523 18,646
Actuarial (gain) loss BHE (=) B8 (4,510) 40,440
Contributions 3R 1,470 1,562
Benefits paid ZNE =R (17,226) (10,7295)
At end of the year Fi5 354,616 328,404
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25. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES — 25. BRERIEE — &

continued
Defined benefit scheme — continued EEEATE — &
Movements in the fair value of scheme assets are as HEEEZ AT EBEEHNOT -
follows:
2011 2010
—E——F —E-ZF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THET
At beginning of the year F4) 223,371 210,234
Currency realignment PE 5 % 16,842 (19,370)
Expected return on scheme assets FHEIEE 2 TEHA B ] 16,200 14,304
Actuarial gain EE W= 20,834 16,112
Contributions R 13,531 12,816
Benefits paid FRr <t A& A (17,226) (10,725)
At end of the year FiE 273,552 223,371
The fair value of the scheme assets and the expected HEBENBESHRTEE Y A TEEETEREHRERS
rate of return at the end of the reporting period is T -
analysed as follows:
Expected return Fair value of plan assets
s IEEE SrEIEEZ A FEE
2011 2010 2011 2010

—g-—-% -FT-BF -F—F -T-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000

THET THETT

Equity instruments HmT A 7.30% 7.20% 245,376 199,283
Debt instruments EHTA 4.30% 4.20% 27,355 23,902
Other assets HihEE 0.50% 0.50% 821 186

273,552 223,371
The overall expected rate of return of assets held is i EE Y BEEHOREAE7T0%(—E—Z4F :
7.0% (2010: 6.90%). The overall expected rate of 6.90%) ° B EETEHCIRE T RATHEEE SRR 2518
return is a weighted average of the expected returns BEBHERR MEFHEY - BRB T2 aH%
of the various categories of scheme assets held. The Oy BREN2BRFEAZREZREAEZRAR
assumptions used in determining the overall expected PREEMEETE °
return of the scheme have been set with reference to
yields available on government bonds and appropriate
risk margins.
The actual return on scheme assets was HEEEZER O A37,034,0008 T (= —Z4F
HK$37,034,000 (2010: HK$30,416,000). 30,416,000/ 7T) ©
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25. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES — 25. BAREBERFE -z
continued
Defined benefit scheme — continued EREENEE — &
The history of the scheme for the current and prior AT EIA R EAR B HAR 2 4280 T
periods is as follows:
2011 2010 2009
—B2——F _ZT-FF _—ZTTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET FHET
Present value of defined benefit E FE AR I A
obligation ZIRE 354,616 328,404 303,635
Fair value of scheme assets FEIEEZATEER (273,552) (223,371) (210,234)
Deficit B4t 81,064 105,033 93,401
Experience adjustments on rElaE AT
scheme liabilities R (4,510) 40,440 11,059
Experience adjustments on FTEIEE BT
scheme assets R 20,834 16,112 (16,964)
26. DEFERRED TAXATION 26. EELEBIIE
The following is the deferred taxation liability recognised CHERAZVELEHEAERESSHNT ¢
and movement thereon:
Accelerated tax depreciation
InEBIETE
2011 2010
—2——F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Balance at beginning of the year FH R 281 143
Currency realignment b H AR 21 17
(Credit) charged to profit or loss Ba A (GEA) kR (133) 121
Balance at end of the year FrEER 169 281

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
unused tax losses of approximately HK$43,232,000
(2010: HK$41,261,000) available for offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. These tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.
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27.

SHARE CAPITAL 27. IR
Number of
shares Amount
RHEE -
‘000 HK$’000
LA R%ET FHIT
Authorised share capital of HK$0.1 each:  ERXEIE 0.1 87T 2 A FERA ¢
Balance at 1 July 2009, RZZTZTNFEA—A-
30 June 2010 and —T-ZEFXA=1tHK
30 June 2011 —E——FRXA=Z+HZ&EH 12,000,000 1,200,000
Issued and fully paid share capital of RE{EO0.1 BT 2 B#IT
HK$0.1 each: AR
Balance at 1 July 2009 R-EEAG+A—B2&H 5,142,121 514,212
Issue of shares as 2009 final AR BEITRMDIEAE-ST NG
scrip dividend RHEAAR B 36,777 3,678
Issue of shares as 2010 interim R BEITRNDIEA=ZST—ZF
scrip dividend FHERRR B 55,310 5,531
Balance at 30 June 2010 and RZZE—ZFTFA=TAK
1 July 2010 —E-EFELA—HZEH 5,234,208 523,421
Issue of shares as 2010 final ARREEITROIER=S—TF
scrip dividend RHEARR B 69,939 6,994
Issue of shares as 2011 interim R EBEITRNDIEA=S—F
scrip dividend AR ERRR B 66,717 6,672
Issue of shares upon rights issue R ELAR R AT 31T 2 AR (D 2,121,659 212,166
Balance at 30 June 2011 R-ZB——FXA=+HZ& 7,492,523 749,253

During the year, the following changes in the share

capital of the Company took place:

REFER  NRBRAZ BEFN T

(@)

In January 2011, 69,939,271 shares of HK$0. 1
each were issued at a price of HK$0.118 per
share upon election by shareholders to receive
shares in the Company in lieu of the 2010 final
dividend in cash, pursuant to the scrip dividend
scheme as detailed in a circular dated 21
December 2010;

In April 2011, the Company issued
2,121,658,738 rights shares of HK$0.1 each

at a subscription price of HK$0.1 per rights
share on the basis of two rights shares for every
five existing shares held. The Company raised
HK$208,376,000 (net of expenses) for general
working capital of the Group;

In May 2011, 66,716,993 shares of HK$0.1 each
were issued at a price of HK$0.1 per share upon
election by shareholders to receive shares in the
Company in lieu of the 2011 interim dividend in
cash, pursuant to the scrip dividend scheme as
detailed in a circular dated 6 April 2011.

All shares issued rank pari passu with the then existing
shares in issue in all respects.

(@)

R-ZE——%—F BRREBER_T-TF
TR T HERZBEEMAFRZARKE
i UARRBRMNRERS UM _T—Z4F
KRR BR  NARREMO0118E T ZER
#1769,939,271 IR B E(E 0.1 /BT Z A0

RZT——FMA  AAFAEFRERBKHD
OABLZREBE  REFERARBEERMHA
B MR AR AR () < 2 - #172,121,658,738
BREREEONBITZHBERG - KARIES
208,376,000 L (EMBREA ) IEALEE 2
—REBES

RZZT——FHA BREREEZR-_T——FN
ARNBEHZBHIAFLZ ABRKSEE -
NARARBHAREBRSWER T ——FhH
BE%  ARABIETFROABIT ZEBIRBET
66,716,993 B EE 0.1 /BT 21D °

PRAERIEMETZBRNES THEZERRECHTR

NEBRFER -

S
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28.

Kantone Holdings Limited

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Each of the Company, Champion, and a fellow
subsidiary, DIGITALHONGKONG.COM ("Digital

HK"), has a share option scheme under which
eligible persons, including directors of the Company,
Champion, Digital HK or any of their respective
subsidiaries, may be granted options to subscribe for
shares of the Company, Champion and Digital HK
respectively.

(i) The Company
On 29 November 2002, the Company adopted
the share option scheme (the "Scheme")
which, with a remaining life of about 1 year, will
expire on 28 November 2012. The purpose of
the Scheme is to attract and to retain quality
personnel and to provide them with incentive
to contribute to the business and operation of
the Group. Under the Scheme, the directors of
the Company may grant options to any eligible
persons of the Group, including directors,
employees, consultants, advisors in respect of
business, operation, management, technology,
legal, accounting and financial matters of the
Company, its subsidiaries or affiliates or any
discretionary trust whose discretionary objects
include the aforesaid persons or a company
beneficially owned by the aforesaid persons as
well as customers and suppliers of the Group, to
subscribe for shares of the Company. Options
granted are exercisable at any time for a period
determined by the directors of the Company
which will be less than ten years from the date of
grant, where the acceptance date should not be
later than 21 days after the date of offer.

The exercise price per share (subject to
adjustment as provided therein) of the option
under the Scheme is the highest of (i) the
nominal value of the shares; (i) the closing price
per share as stated in the daily quotation sheet
of the Exchange on the date of grant, which
must be a business day; and (iii) the average
closing price per share as stated in the daily
quotation sheet of the Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date
of grant. The maximum number of shares in
respect of which the options may be granted
under the Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company at the date
of approval of the Scheme. The total maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options must not
exceed 30% of the issued share capital of

the Company from time to time. The number

of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any individual in any 12-month period
is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of
the Company in issue on the last date of such
12-month period, without prior approval from the
Company'’s shareholders. No option under the
Scheme has been granted since its adoption.
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME — continued

(i)

Champion

On 29 November 2002, Champion adopted a
share option scheme (the “Champion Option
Scheme”). The purpose of the Champion

Option Scheme is to attract and to retain quality
personnel and other persons and to provide
them with incentive to contribute to the business
and operation of Champion and its subsidiaries
(the “Champion Group”). Under the Champion
Option Scheme, the directors of Champion

may grant options to any directors, employees,
consultants, advisors in respect of business,
operation, management, technology, legal,
accounting and financial matters of Champion,
its subsidiaries or affiliates or any discretionary
trust whose discretionary objects include the
aforesaid persons or a company beneficially
owned by the aforesaid persons as well as
customers and suppliers of the Champion
Group, to subscribe for shares of Champion.
The option granted by Champion is exercisable at
any time for a period determined by the directors
of Champion which will be less than ten years
from the date of grant, where the acceptance
date should not be late than 21 days after the
date of offer.

The exercise price per share (subject to
adjustment as provided therein) of the option
under the Champion Option Scheme is the
highest of (i) the nominal value of the shares; (ii)
the closing price per share as stated in the daily
quotation sheet of the Exchange on the date of
grant, which must be a business day; and (ji)) the
average closing price per share as stated in the
daily quotation sheet of the Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of
grant. No option has been granted by Champion
under the Champion Option Scheme since its
adoption.
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME — continued 28.

(ili) DIGITAL HK
On 29 November 2002, Digital HK adopted
a share option scheme (the “DHK Option
Scheme”). The purpose of the DHK Option
Scheme is to attract and to retain quality
personnel and other persons and to provide
them with incentive to contribute to the business
and operation of Digital HK and its subsidiaries
(the “Digital HK Group”). Under the DHK Option
Scheme, the directors of Digital HK may grant
options to any directors, employees, consultants,
advisors in respect of business, operation,
management, technology, legal, accounting and
financial matters of Digital HK, its subsidiaries
or affiliates or any discretionary trust whose
discretionary objects include the aforesaid
persons or a company beneficially owned by
the aforesaid persons as well as customers and
suppliers of the Digital HK Group, to subscribe
for shares of Digital HK. Options granted by
Digital HK are exercisable at any time for a
period determined by the directors of Digital HK
which will be less than ten years from the date of
grant, where the acceptance date should not be
late than 21 days after the date of offer.

The exercise price per share (subject to
adjustment as provided therein) of the option
under the DHK Option Scheme is the highest

of (i) the nominal value of the shares; (i) the
closing price per share as stated in the daily
quotation sheet of the Exchange on the date of
grant, which must be a business day; and (jii) the
average closing price per share as stated in the
daily quotation sheet of the Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date
of grant. No option has been granted by Digital
HK under the DHK Option Scheme since its
adoption.

29. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 29.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
year.
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29.

30.

31.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT — 29. EXEBEE - &
continued
The capital structure of the Group consists of equity AEBEZERGEBBIEARREAE AEGLEZR(BAE
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising BITRAS - B MRBRFIFTAERK) -
issued share capital, reserves and retained profits.
The directors of the Company review the capital AR EETHFRINEALEE - EAKRNZ—3B
structure on a bi-annual basis. As part of this review, 7 BEESEFRAARKARERALER 2 R o
the directors consider the cost of capital and the BREBEESZEZR  ASEBBERBITHRG - HER
risks associated with each class of capital. Based D RBITHESERRGER - UTFEREERLERE -
on recommendations of the directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the new
share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue
of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 30. EXREE
2011 2010
—=——fF —T-TF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Capital expenditure in respect of property, BREERTHZBEBYE -
plant and equipment and development B M AR R R AR A
costs for systems and networks authorised ~ ZFZEKAZ EAFR T
but not contracted for 98,280 76,440
OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 31, E&HEZRH
The Group as lessee KEBEERRBA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RMERTER  AEEZBEEERERAMERRE Y
future minimum lease payments payable under non- TAFELEHER AR REEMGHEERE 2B HBE
cancellable operating leases in respect of rented N
premises and motor vehicles which fall due as follows:
2011 2010
—E——F —T-TF
Land and Motor Land and Motor
buildings vehicles buildings vehicles
T REF RE T REF AE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FHET FERT FHAT FAT
Operating leases which B FHE R 2
expire: KEEE
Within one year —FA 822 2,629 828 2,411
In the second to fourth year FEFEENF
inclusive A 2,840 2,888 2,928 3,502
3,662 5,617 3,756 5,913

Leases are negotiated for terms of one to four years
and rentals are fixed for terms of one to four years.

RERRZEEFHIN T —FE20F  MESTHR—
FEMF2FHERE -

EEEEARAA —E——FFH
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31. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 31.

— continued

The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
contracted with tenants in respect of leasing of plant
and machinery and telecommunications networks
which fall due as follows:

REHBELTH — 2

AEBESHBEA
B"i&iﬂﬁmn% REECHEERE REBARE
EHEREEPRIAHK - ERBBERIT

2011 2010
—E——fF —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FAT
Within one year —FR 796 676
In the second to fifth year inclusive FE_FEFRAFN 19,973 17,817
After five years RAEFE - 5,461
20,769 23,954
32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32. EBEALRS
During the year, the Group has the following REEAN  AEERTELCHEIT IR :
transactions with Champion:
2011 2010
—®——f —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBxT FAET
Nature of transactions R 5 E Al
Fees paid by the Group to Champion for NEBMILTK AT E X HER
the provision of office premises and facilities, — ## /A = K& H &4 & &2 RS
and management services, on cost basis ZER 900 500
Underwriting commission paid to Champion — FAANA Al AR AR E S 2
in respect of rights issue of the Company BiEME 2,440 -
3,340 500

These transactions were carried out after negotiation
between the Group and Champion. The fees paid

for the provision of office premises and facilities, and
management services were in accordance to the
management agreement entered into with Champion
dated 20 December 1996, which was renewed on 5
January 2010. The underwriting commission was paid
in accordance with the agreement entered into with
Champion dated 23 March 2010.

The key management personnel of the Group are

the executive directors of the Company and the five
highest paid individuals. The aggregate amount paid to
them was HK$7,114,000 (2010: Hk$8,301,000) details
of which are set out in note 9.
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33. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 30
June 2011 and 30 June 2010 are as follows:

33. TENBLT

RZE——FAA=FTHEZZ—ZF A

+8 -

ARAREEEMBRRZFBEMAT -

Proportion of

Place of Nominal value of nominal value of
incorporation/ issued share capital/ issued share capital
Name of subsidiaries operations registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
AAREEE BT
HEARAR MR B BERTRAEEEMELR RAEELA TEEK
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E--f s —B--F —E-TE
Aspire Management Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Ordinary 72.7% 66.7%  Investment holding
EBRARES US$2,200,000  US$1,800,000 REER
ZER Tidk
2,200,000%7% 1,800,000
Bingo Profits Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Investment holding
EBERRES US$1 US$1 REERR
EER1ZRT TER1ET
China Sports Network Limited Samoa Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Development of gaming
RERBBRAR BETEE US$1,000,000  US$1,000,000 software, sports contents,
ZER LER sports websites and sports
1,000,000  1,000,000%7T network systems
BEE - BEHA
TR RN RERRAER
LRERK
Good Holdings Limited* Republic of Seychelles Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Investment holding
EREFLRA US$50,000 US$50,000 REERR
50,000 %7 50,000%7T
Kantone (UK) Limited United Kingdom Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Investment holding
HE £5,500,000 £5,500,000 REER
EZER Tidk
5,500,000%8 5,500,000 %8
Keen Pacific Limited* Samoa Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Provision of treasury
BEDHS US$1 US$1 senvices
EER1ZT  EBRR1ET RS BIRY
Kontone Development Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Provision of treasury
BRERARAR B HK$2 HK$2 senvices
EER2ET  EER2ETL R BIRY
M.C. Holdings Limited* Cayman Islands Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Investment holding
HEHE £5,500,002 £5,500,002 BEER
5,500,002%% 5,500,002 4%
EEEEARAT —B——FER
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33. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES — continued

BE-T——F

o
/N

A=+HILFE

33. TEMBLT -4

Proportion of

Place of Nominal value of nominal value of
incorporation/ issued share capital/ issued share capital
Name of subsidiaries operations registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
AAREEE BT
HEARAR MR B BERTRAEE HEREXR RAEEELA TEER
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E--f —E-TE —E2—-F —E-ZE
Multitone Electronica Limitada Brazil Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Distribution of
B R$300,000 R$300,000 communication systems
EER TEk and equipment
300,000 =® 300,000 E=F PHBERHRRE
Muttitone Electronics PLC United Kingdom Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Investment holding, design
HEH £3,830,107 £3,830,107 and manufacture of
LER LA communication systems
3,830,107 %% 3,830,107 %4 and equipment
REZR - Rt Rk
EERERGRRE
Multitone Electronics Sdn. Bhd.  Malaysia Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Manufacturing of
| Gl MR285,000 MR285,000 communication systems
EER TEk and equipment
285,000 285,000 EEREZRRRE
BRALT SRALT
Muttiton Elektronik GmbH Germany Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Distribution of
=8 €1,022,584 €1,022,584 communication systems
EER TEk and equipment
1,022,584 BT 1,022,584 BT PHBERHRRE
Multitone Rentals Limited United Kingdom Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Leasing of communication
RE £100 £100 systems and equipment
EER10KE TERI100KE HERERHRRE
Peak Vantage Limited* British Virgin Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Provision of treasury
Islands/Macau US$1 US$1 services
RAEBREREE/ RN EER1XT EER1ET REFBRS
Pearl Delta Inc* Samoa Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Provision of treasury
BETHS Us$1 US$1 services
EER1XT EER1ET REFBRS

Kantone Holdings Limited
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33. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES — continued

33. TEMBRF —#

Proportion of

Place of Nominal value of nominal value of
incorporation/ issued share capital/ issued share capital
Name of subsidiaries operations registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
AAREEE BT
HEARAR MR e ERTRAEE EREXR REEELA TEEK
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E--f s - —E-ZE
Shenzhen Hengyu Science PRC Registered Registered 72.7% 66.7%  Investment holding
and Technology Company H capital capital REER
Limited* RMB24,000,000 RMB24,000,000
BERE ORI BERAR T EA AR
AR® ARE
24,000,000 7T 24,000,000 7T
Silverstrand Investments Limited ~ Samoa Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Investment holding
BEDES US$1 US$1 REER
EBR1ER TER1ET
Smart Delta Inc. Samoa Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Provision of treasury services
EEDHS US$1 US$1 R4 RS
EBR1ER LTidRk1ET
Smart (Macao Commercial Macau Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Provision of services,
Offshore) Limited b MOP100,000 MOP100,000 software licensing and
R CRPIBE A % RTS) EZER TER trading in communication
BARAA 100,000%F5%  100,000;RM9% systems and equipment
HREAIRS - AfrhETE
REBBERARRE
Success (Macao Commercial Macau Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Provision of consultancy
Offshore) Limited il MOP100,000 MOP100,000 services, research and
BRY CRPIB R AR TS & LER development, and selling
BRATE 100,000 F5%  100,0003RP% activities
REEMRS - HER
REMHEED
Wollaston Limited Samoa Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Investment holding
BEDES US$1 US$1 REER
EBR1%ER TER1ET
Zonal Care Incorporated” British Virgin Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Strategic investments in
Islands/Macau Uss$2 USs$2 advanced technology and
HBHBREE/BM EER2ET LERoET e-commerce projects, and
provision of treasury
s_ervices
RENERETEEER
CREHRE R
R T RTS
. Directly held by the Company. * HAARFEEREE ©
& Wholly owned foreign enterprise for a term of 20 years & ZENERE  FHHE-TT=FF+A+tH®BF20

commencing 17 October 2003.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results of the year or constituted a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
subsisting at 30 June 2011 and 30 June 2010 or at
any time during the year.

4 o

ERAIARBMBRARDEERRERNFEEXEE
EAFEIBNAEEEEFEEALEZWER
A BERR  MBEMHMBARZFE G5
Alg S ERBRITE
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 34, 7/ &2 BiiS4k R %

OF THE COMPANY
As at 30 June
RAA=1H
2011 2010
—E——F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET T
Non-current assets FERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NN F 1,578,872 1,518,598
Current assets MENEE
Other receivables JFEE LA L Ath B 5K 606 371
Bank balances and cash RITHBRIRES 216,702 79,286
217,308 79,657
Current liabilities mEBE
Other payables JE AT L Ath BR R 1,552 1,684
Dividend payables FERTRR S 2 2
Amount due to a subsidiary FEASTIT BB A B).Z 38 136 136
1,690 1,822
Net current assets MEEEFE 215,618 77,835
Net assets BEFE 1,794,490 1,696,433
Capital and reserves AR R i s
Share capital R& AR 749,253 523,421
Reserves fHlE 1,045,237 1,073,012
1,794,490 1,696,433
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Financial Summary

MBRE

RESULTS E4
Year ended 30 June
HEAAZ=THLEE
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
“E--F “2-TF —ZTNE —TT\F —TELFE “TE/F —FTTRE _TIMEF -TE-F -FF-
HK$000  HKS000 HK$000  HKS000 HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000
TEr TEr  TEr  TEr  TAr  TEr  TEr TEr TEr TEn
TURNOVER BeE 1,341,006 1280616 1209684 1613048 1426506 1346894 1127326 1014640 814735 722,360
PROFIT FROM ORDINARY BREAAELH
ACTIVITIES BEFORE gl
TAXATION
Continuing operations excluding AT EMEL %
other operafing expenses JEEQSEE 149007 166030 266368 473710 466036 389774 276349 204049 1263 67221
Other aperating expenses EpEATH (65,7200 (858000 (196,999) (334904)  (55781)  (68104)  (7.997)  (48840) (15345  (69.727)
PROFITBEFORETAYATION  Bpsatisf 84187 80230 69360 138806 410255 331,670 268352 155000 111011 (2508)
TAXATION e 133 {21 (1,08 (1842 ) (115) (424) (257) (661) 72)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REEET 84320 80100 68307 136964 410254 331555 267928 154952 110350 (2579
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: fElh
OWNERS OF THECOMPANY ~ ARFIHEA 84025 8295 71068 143010 412018 332700 267928 154867 110340 (2579
NON-CONTROLLING FERBR
INTERESTS % 295 (846 (761 (G046 (1764 (1149) = 85 10 =
84320 80109 68307 136964 410254 331555 267928 154952 110350 (2579
DIVIDENDS BE 25508 208% 18791 51723 120023 93043 49755 28731 1332% =
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
At 30 June
WAB=TH
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
“E--F ZT-TF ZZTNE I\ Z2%tF ZTT5E -TTRE -TINE -TT-F -TECE
HK$000  HKS000 HK$000  HKS000 HKS000  HKS000 HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000
Téx Thr Tér  ThExr TEr  TExr  TEr  TAr  TEr TEn
TOTAL ASSETS BEEE 3334519 30657917 2995040 2545463 2405086 1923147 1393256 1,064307 1022672 927409
TOTAL LIABLITIES BEAE 173844 181,652 199517 256,808 266643 238316 310423 237257 330506 338550
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS e 3160675 2876265 2795503 2288655 2130413 1684831 1082833 827,140 692,166 588859
EQUTYATTRBUTABLETO  AZFHEA
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY  fEf5#Ezt 3,156,748 2872038 2789377 2279155 2124524 1668550 1082740 827046 692,156 588859
NON-CONTROLLING JEERRARE
INTERESTS % 3927 337 6146 9500 14889 16,281 93 9 10 =
3160675 2876265 2795503 2288655 2130413 1684831 1082833 827140 692,166 588850
EEEEERAA —E——FFH]
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Chengdu
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Munchen
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NORTH AMERICA
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SOUTH AMERICA
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Rio de Janeiro

AFRICA

Mauritius

DISTRIBUTORS

Australia
Melbourne
Sydney

Belgium
Brussels

Canada
Toronto
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St Johns
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Zagreb
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Czech Republic
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Copenhagen
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Russia
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Sweden
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United Arab Emirates

Dubai
Abu Dhabi
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USA
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Lousiana
lllinois
California
Nevada
Texas
Georgia
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